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Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
Certain statements in this Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") constitute forward-looking statements within the
meaning of applicable securities laws. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements made under the
headings “Business Outlook” and “Risks and Uncertainties” and other statements concerning the Company's 2016 objectives,
strategies to achieve those objectives, as well as statements with respect to management's beliefs, plans, estimates, and intentions,
and similar statements concerning anticipated future events, results, circumstances, performance or expectations that are not
historical facts. Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as
“outlook”, “objective”, “may”, “will”, “expect”, “intend”, “estimate”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “should”, “plans” or “continue”, or
similar expressions suggesting future outcomes or events. Such forward-looking statements reflect management's current beliefs
and are based on information currently available to management. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by such statements. Factors that could cause such differences
include the highly competitive nature of the Company's industry, government regulation and funding and other such risk factors
described from time to time in the reports and disclosure documents filed by the Company with Canadian securities regulatory
agencies and commissions. This list is not exhaustive of the factors that may impact the Company's forward-looking statements.
These and other factors should be considered carefully and readers should not place undue reliance on the Company's forwardlooking statements. As a result of the foregoing and other factors, no assurance can be given as to any such future results, levels
of activity or achievements and neither the Company nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness
of these forward-looking statements. The factors underlying current expectations are dynamic and subject to change. Although
the forward-looking information contained in this MD&A is based upon what management believes are reasonable assumptions,
there can be no assurance that actual results will be consistent with these forward-looking statements. Certain statements included
in this MD&A may be considered “financial outlook” for purposes of applicable securities laws, and such financial outlook may
not be appropriate for purposes other than this MD&A. All forward-looking statements in this MD&A are qualified by these
cautionary statements. Other than specifically required by applicable laws, we are under no obligation and we expressly disclaim
any such obligation to update or alter the forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise except as may be required by law. These forward looking statements are made as of the date of this MD&A.
The following is a discussion of the interim consolidated financial position and the income and comprehensive income of Centric
Health Corporation, (“Centric Health” or the “Company”) for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and
of certain factors that the Company believes may affect its prospective financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.
The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. The unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial
statements for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards 34 Interim Financial Reporting. The Company's significant accounting policies are summarized in detail
in note 1 of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, which have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). Unless otherwise specified, amounts reported in this MD&A are in
millions, except shares and per share amounts and percentages. The following MD&A is presented as of August 9, 2016. All
amounts are disclosed in Canadian dollars. Additional information about the Company, including the most recently filed Annual
Information Form, is available on www.sedar.com.
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Highlights for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016
During the second quarter of 2016, Centric Health continued to make steady, meaningful progress on each of its three strategic
priorities:
• Reduce debt and strengthen the balance sheet;
• Strengthen the foundation by focusing on leadership in excellence in patient care; and,
• Grow organically and through strategic acquisitions.
With the completion of a substantial reduction of its outstanding debt (see below), management has turned its primary focus to
executing the growth strategies for each of its business segments, as it continues to pursue further debt reduction.
Significant Progress on Debt Reduction and Strengthening the Balance Sheet
Building on its progress in 2015, the Company took significant additional steps during the first half of 2016 to advance its strategy
to reduce debt and strengthen the balance sheet. The Company committed to using a substantial portion of the net proceeds received
from the the sale of substantially all of the businesses within its Physiotherapy, Rehabilitation and Medical Assessments segment
(the "Sale Transaction") of approximately $235.0 million to repay debt, with the remaining net proceeds expected to be used for
investing in growing the Company's ongoing businesses. The actions taken by the Company in this regard in aggregate reduced
outstanding debt by $208.6 million since the beginning of 2016, significantly improving its leverage ratios, and will result in
interest expense savings of $18.8 million annually, which will greatly improve the Company's free cash flow. In addition, the
strengthened balance sheet provides increased financial flexibility to enable the Company to invest in the growth of its ongoing
businesses going forward.
•

In February 2016, the Company purchased a total principal amount of $164.3 million (plus $4.8 million of accrued and
unpaid interest for a total payment of $169.1 million) of its second lien senior secured notes (the "Notes").

•

In March 2016, using $30.0 million of the net proceeds from the Sale Transaction and a promissory note, Lifemark Health
Limited Partnership redeemed all of its issued and outstanding remaining Preferred Partnership Units (the "Units") for
the full repurchase price of approximately $38.4 million. Immediately upon redemption of the Units and payment of $30.0
million in cash, Alaris loaned the Company approximately $8.4 million as a promissory note (the “Alaris Promissory
Note”), which the Company repaid on March 23, 2016.

•

On March 3, 2016, the Company made an offer to the holders of the 5.5% April 2016 Convertible Debentures ("April
2016 CDs") to extend the maturity date to July 31, 2017, increase the interest rate payable to 6.5% and reduce the conversion
price from $0.9229 per share to $0.52 per share (the "Offer"). On May 2, 2016, the Company paid $0.1 million cash
consent fee (representing 1.333% of the principal amount) to the noteholders of $9.1 million principal balance who
accepted the Offer, and the noteholders holding the remaining convertible debentures were paid $5.9 million in respect
of principal outstanding at par plus accrued and unpaid interest of $0.2 million.

•

On March 22, 2016, the Revolving Facility amended the credit agreement, which was scheduled to mature on June 9,
2016, for a two year extension. The extended Revolving Facility will now mature on March 22, 2018 and will bear interest
on a sliding scale from prime plus 1.25% to prime plus 2.75% for principal borrowed and a range of 0.56% to 0.94% for
standby fees for amounts not borrowed. The Revolving Facility's capacity will remain at $35.0 million, with an additional
$15.0 million accordion available subject to lender approval.

The renewed Revolving Facility, along with any remaining proceeds from the Sale Transaction, should provide the Company with
sufficient funding and flexibility to invest in growing the ongoing businesses and manage its cash requirements through 2016,
within the restraints of the amended facility's covenants. The Company intends to repay the convertible debentures that mature in
December 2016 with any of the remaining proceeds or the combination of remaining proceeds and the Revolving Facility, as
permitted under the terms of the credit agreement. The Company is also reviewing strategic alternatives for the debt obligations
that mature in 2017.
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Financial Performance: Continued Strong Year-Over-Year Growth in Continuing Operations
For the three month period ended June 30, 2016, Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations increased 4.1% to
$43.3 million and 48.4% to $4.1 million, respectively, compared to $41.5 million and $2.8 million over the same period in the
prior year. Similarly, for the six month period ended June 30, 2016, Revenue and EBITDA from continuing operations increased
7.1% to $84.2 million and 78.4% to $6.9 million compared to $78.6 million and $3.9 million over the same period in the prior
year. This three month period marked the ninth consecutive quarter of year-on-year improvements in quarterly results for Centric
Health. Due to the timing of the Sale Transaction, the corporate office expenses for the 2015 comparative periods include costs
associated with, primarily, salaries and benefits of resources that were included as part of the divestiture or were eliminated
subsequent to the closing of the Sale Transaction on December 31, 2015.
For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, cash used in operations were $4.9 million and $12.1 million due to timing
of payments, particularly for the accrued transaction costs of approximately $6.5 million associated with the Sale Transaction in
December 2015, and continued focus on operational and working capital initiatives. The Company has historically generated
positive cash flows from operating activities and anticipates that the cash flow from operations will be positive going forward.
Execution on Growth Strategies
During the second quarter, the Company continued to execute on the growth strategies for each of its business segments, which
are focused on maximizing utilization of its extensive national networks of Specialty Pharmacy fulfillment centres and surgical
and medical centres. The Company is also focused on expanding its Specialty Pharmacy fulfillment centre network to expand its
serviceable area and, as a result, its addressable market.
Specialty Pharmacy
During the second quarter, the Company completed a tuck-in acquisition of a fulfillment centre in Regina, Saskatchewan, which
will service new and existing contracts in the region. The Specialty Pharmacy segment continued to be successful in winning new
contracts with long-term care and retirements homes, especially in Western Canada, and continues to have a robust pipeline of
opportunities that the Company expects will contribute to continued growth in the number of beds going forward.
Subsequent to June 30, 2016, the Company entered into 10-year Business Development, Technology and Supply Agreements with
Guardian and IDA Pharmacies under which the Company has agreed to an exclusive supply arrangement over the term of the
agreement and the two companies have committed to explore partnerships that can result in the creation or extension of patient
support initiatives that deliver better quality and more efficient patient care by leveraging technology. Under the terms of the
Agreements, Guardian and IDA Pharmacies have committed to invest up to $17.0 million to support innovative programs and
solutions, as well as the organic and acquisitive growth strategies of Centric Health.
Surgical and Medical Centres
During the second quarter, utilization in the Surgical and Medical Centre segment increased to a record high of 44% from 39% in
the same quarter of 2015 and 41% in the first quarter of 2016, as the Company continued to benefit from the strategic positioning
of the centres as partners with physicians, hospitals and health authorities. The Company also benefited from the investments it
made in facilities upgrades and accreditations in 2015, which have further strengthened the positioning of its centres and is
contributing to increased efficiency and improved work flow.

1

Defined and calculated in Reconciliation of Non-IFRS Measures
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Business Overview
As healthcare systems continue to face the challenges of spiraling costs and long wait times amidst an aging population faced with
multiple chronic conditions, independent and collaborative support and innovation are needed to identify and deliver cost effective
solutions that are in the best interest of patients, healthcare providers and payers. At the same time, patient and payer attitudes
towards independent sector care provision are also changing in favour of the sector. This is demonstrated by an increased willingness
by payers to adopt co-payment models and a greater emphasis on outcomes-based measures.
Centric Health is Canada’s healthcare services brand that provides expert solutions and trusted care through a national community
of experts who can be accessed quickly and who have a track record of achieving superior patient outcomes and providing
outstanding client satisfaction. Centric operates in two key service areas, Specialty Pharmacy and Surgical and Medical Centres.
Centric’s Specialty Pharmacy business provides pharmaceutical dispensing and clinical consulting services to long term care homes
and retirement communities across Canada. Centric's Surgical and Medical Centres offer a broad range of procedures in state-ofthe-art surgical facilities with a commitment to quality care, patient safety and personal one-on-one attention. Centric’s clients are
individuals and organizations (both corporate and government) who are looking for quality healthcare solutions. The Company is
committed to complementing the public system to provide the best healthcare for Canadians with a commitment to offering services
that are based on prevailing healthcare trends and expected future demands. Centric Health’s key performance indicators for
measuring and reporting quality, safety and patient satisfaction serve as a distinct competitive differentiator.
Centric’s vision is to be Canada’s most respected brand in the independent healthcare sector and world renowned for quality,
innovation and for delivering sustainable value to patients, clients and stakeholders. With national networks of facilities in each
of its core businesses, deep knowledge and experience of healthcare delivery and extensive, trusted relationships with payers,
physicians, and government agencies, the Company is uniquely positioned to address current and future healthcare needs in growing
markets as the Canadian healthcare industry continues to evolve over the long term.
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Business Strategy
With the completion of the recent debt reduction and refinancing initiatives stemming from the use of a substantial portion of the
net proceeds received from the Sale Transaction, the Company has delivered on its three-year strategic commitment to significantly
reduce its debt and strengthen its balance sheet to provide the financial flexibility to invest in its ongoing businesses and capitalize
on the significant opportunities therein to generate long-term, sustainable growth.
Strategic Focus
Centric Health is focused in two high growth areas of healthcare services with businesses that generate strong margins and cash
flows and that, despite growth driven capital investments, have low ongoing capital expenditure and working capital requirements:
• Specialty Pharmacy
• Surgical and Medical Centres
Centric Health believes it will be successful through a focus on three core capabilities and competitive differentiators that underlie
the Company’s core value proposition and support leading patient outcomes:
• Quality
• Client Centricity
• Innovation and technology
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Overview of Core Businesses & Growth Initiatives
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Pursuit of Three Strategic Priorities
Centric Health management is focused on the following priorities to create sustainable shareholder value over both the short- and
long-term:
1.

Grow Organically and Through Strategic Tuck-In Acquisitions - Continue to generate growth organically from core businesses,
as well as through strategic tuck-in acquisitions in core businesses.

2.

Reduce Debt and Strengthen the Balance Sheet - Continue to execute on debt reduction strategy while maximizing cash flows
through initiatives to reduce corporate spending and minimize working capital.

3.

Strengthen the Foundation - Continue to focus on providing the highest level of quality care and patient outcomes through
quality reporting and accreditation while maximizing the client/patient experience.

Grow Organically and Through Strategic Tuck-In Acquisitions
In March 2015, the Company established a national pharmacy platform with the acquisition of Pharmacare Fulfillment Centre
Ltd. ("Pharmacare"), a leading Alberta-based specialty pharmacy business. Pharmacare provides medication dispensing services
and clinical care programs to long-term care and retirement community residents across western Canada through an integrated
distribution model. The completion of this acquisition positioned the Company to continue to grow its pharmacy business through
strategic expansion on a national delivery platform.
Centric Health will continue to generate growth both organically from core businesses and through strategic tuck-in acquisitions
in its core businesses in the Specialty Pharmacy and Surgical and Medical Centres segments.
Organic growth is focused in each of its respective businesses on leveraging the Company’s value proposition with customers,
patients and payers to win new contracts within its existing scope of services, expanding its scope of services to leverage its existing
customer base and attract new customers, and maximizing the capacity utilization of its existing facilities and operational
capabilities.
The Company will continue to explore strategic tuck-in acquisitions that will strengthen its value proposition to customers and
patients and expand its national platforms within its core businesses. Acquisitions will support the Company’s focus on businesses
with strong margins and cash flows, as well as low ongoing capital expenditure and working capital requirements. The Company
will seek to complete acquisitions using a structure that maximizes the cash flow return on investment ("CFROI") and Adjusted
EBITDA. To achieve this, the Company may issue common shares and cash that are contingent on the future performance of the
underlying business as consideration for such acquisitions.
The Company intends to only undertake an acquisition or growth initiative following completion of a comprehensive analysis to
ensure it is aligned to strategic focus areas, meets stringent business quality criteria and is accretive to the Company within a
reasonable period. Acquisitions should provide an appropriate return relative to any investments which the Company incurs to
complete the acquisition and the return is expected to be in excess of the Company's risk adjusted weighted average cost of capital.
Reduce Debt and Strengthen the Balance Sheet
Management is committed to strengthening the Company’s balance sheet and reducing the Company’s overall debt level.
Management has established a target for total debt to Adjusted EBITDA of less than four-times over the medium term.
In 2013, the Company implemented the first phase of its debt reduction plan which provided Centric Health with greater financial
flexibility in the short term as it moved forward with its refocused growth strategy and began to incrementally realize the
contributions of its organic growth initiatives and capital redeployment opportunities.
The Company continued on its debt reduction plan in 2014, deploying $25.0 million of the net proceeds from the divestiture of
certain of its non-core businesses towards debt repayment.
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Building on its commitment to reduce debt, the Company took significant additional steps in 2015 and during the first quarter of
2016 to strengthen the balance sheet. The actions taken by the Company in this regard in aggregate reduced outstanding debt by
a further $218.4 million since the beginning of 2015, significantly improving its leverage ratios and resulting in interest expense
savings of $19.6 million annually. In addition, the strengthened balance sheet provides increased financial flexibility to enable the
Company to invest in the growth of its ongoing businesses going forward.
On June 25, 2015, the Company purchased an aggregate of 9,842 of the Notes for a total principal amount of $9.8 million plus
$0.2 million in accrued and unpaid interest, representing $10.0 million in total. With this purchase and permanent reduction in the
credit facility, the Company completed its planned $15.0 million permanent debt reduction through the $5.0 million permanent
reduction to the Revolving Facility and the $9.8 million redemption of the Notes.
On January 19, 2016, the Company made an offer to purchase all of the outstanding 8.625% Notes, of which $190.2 million of
principal (plus accrued and unpaid interest) was outstanding at December 31, 2015. The Company gave notice to the holders of
the Notes to purchase, for par value, the principal amount outstanding together with accrued and unpaid interest up to the purchase
date. On February 19, 2016, the Company announced that holders of the Notes with a par value of $164.3 million had agreed to
participate and surrender their Notes. On February 22, 2016, the Company paid $169.1 million, including $4.8 million of accrued
interest, which left a principal balance of $25.9 million of the Notes remaining.
On March 4, 2016, using $30.0 million of the net proceeds from the Sale Transaction and a promissory note, Lifemark Health
Limited Partnership redeemed all of its issued and outstanding remaining Units, all of which were held by Alaris Income Growth
Fund Partnership ("Alaris"), for the full repurchase price of approximately $38.4 million. Immediately upon redemption of the
Units and payment of $30.0 million in cash, Alaris loaned the Company approximately $8.4 million as a promissory note on
substantially the same economic terms as applied to the equivalent value of Units. On March 23, 2016, the Company repaid the
full amount of the $8.4 million promissory note together with accrued and unpaid interest of $0.1 million to Alaris.
On March 22, 2016, the lenders of the Revolving Facility amended the credit agreement, which was scheduled to mature on June
9, 2016, for a two year extension. The extended Revolving Facility will now mature on March 22, 2018 and will bear interest on
a sliding scale from prime plus 1.25% to prime plus 2.75% for principal borrowed and a range of 0.56% to 0.94% for standby fees
for amounts not borrowed. The Revolving Facility's capacity will remain at $35.0 million, with an additional $15.0 million accordion
available subject to lender approval.
The renewed Revolving Facility, along with any remaining proceeds from the Sale Transaction, should provide the Company with
sufficient funding and flexibility to invest in growing the ongoing businesses and manage its cash requirements through 2016,
within the restraints of the amended facility's covenants. The Company intends to repay the convertible debentures that mature in
December 2016 with any of the remaining proceeds or the combination of remaining proceeds and the Revolving Facility, as
permitted under the terms of the credit agreement. The Company is also reviewing strategic alternatives for the debt obligations
that mature in 2017.
On March 3, 2016, the Company made an Offer to the holders of the April 2016 CDs on the following terms: (i) the maturity date
would be extended from April 30, 2016 to July 31, 2017, (ii) the interest rate payable under the extension terms would be increased
from 5.5% to 6.5% from and including May 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 and (iii) the conversion price would be decreased from
$0.9229 per share to $0.52 per share from and including May 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 (collectively, the "Amended 2016 Note
Terms"). Holders of $9.1 million principal amount agreed to accept the Offer. On May 2, 2016, the Company paid $0.1 million
cash consent fee (representing 1.333% of the principal amount) to the noteholders who accept to the Offer, and the noteholders
holding the remaining convertible debentures for $5.9 million of principal outstanding were repaid at par plus accrued and unpaid
interest of $0.2 million.
Strengthen the Foundation
The highest levels of patient care and quality outcomes are fundamental to Centric’s success. The Company will continue to
enhance quality reporting metrics that demonstrate value to clients with an emphasis on best patient outcomes, increase key client
account support capabilities and earn preferred provider status through exceptional patient and client service and innovative
solutions.
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A key component of the Company's commitment to the highest levels of quality is its accreditations, a number of which are
voluntary. Accreditation is an extensive external review process, which involves evaluating the Company's level of conformance
to rigorous standards in the areas of leadership, ethics, safety, human resource management, business practices, patient care and
measurement of the results of the Company's care and service.
The Company's False Creek surgical centre in Vancouver attained a one-year Surgical Accreditation in September of 2015 through
the College of Physicians and Surgeons, Non Hospitals Medical Surgical Facilities Program. False Creek Diagnostics also received
accreditation in October 2015 through to 2018 by the College of Physicians and Surgeons, Diagnostic Accreditation Program. The
Company's Maples Surgical Centre in Winnipeg underwent and received five-year accreditation through the Manitoba Quality
Assurance Program ("MANQAP"), College of Physicians & Surgeons of Manitoba for Diagnostic Imaging Accreditation and
Fluoroscopy Accreditation. The Company's Smart Shape Weight Loss Centre ("SWLC") was also recognized as Canada’s first
and only Centre of Excellence in Metabolic and Bariatric Surgery by the Surgical Review Corporation ("SRC"), an internationally
recognized healthcare leader committed to advancing the safety, efficacy, and efficiency of surgical care worldwide.
The Company is also focused on maximizing the customer experience for both corporate clients and patients. In the Specialty
Pharmacy segment, the Company proactively introduced quality metrics (later emulated by many competitors) and continues to
lead the industry in this regard while it continually seeks to innovate to improve the customer experience. In the Surgical and
Medical Centres, the Company is focused on information sharing, standardization and integration to enhance the customer
experience both within each centre and throughout the network.
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Business Outlook
With services that address growing demand and evolving needs within the Canadian healthcare system, the platforms within each
of Centric Health’s remaining core businesses provide significant potential for future growth. The Company's organic growth
initiatives are focused on leveraging its value proposition with customers, patients and payers to win new contracts within its
existing scope of services, expanding its scope of services to its existing customer base and attract new customers and maximizing
the capacity utilization of its existing facilities.
Although management expects the Company to continue to generate organic growth over the long term into the foreseeable future,
the timing and cycles of the formal procurement processes (RFP's) could result in some fluctuation in the organic growth rate from
quarter to quarter.
In addition to organic growth, the Company will continue to explore potential acquisitions that are expected to be accretive and
consistent with the Company’s focus on its core business segments and on operations that will contribute to the Company’s focus
on generating strong margins and cash flow while having low capital expenditures and working capital requirements.
Specialty Pharmacy
Delivering on the previously stated objective to expand into Western Canada and to establish a national delivery platform, on
March 2, 2015 the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the shares of Pharmacare, an Edmonton-based leading specialty
pharmacy business operating under the Care Plus, Pharmacare and Lidia’s Pharmacy brands in Western Canada.
In addition to the acquisition growth for the segment, the Specialty Pharmacy segment also continued to achieve success with its
organic growth strategy focused on maximizing the utilization of existing infrastructure by winning new tenders for contracts with
Long Term Care and retirement homes that increased the number of homes serviced and by expanding its retail initiatives. While
the Company anticipates that Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA growth in its Specialty Pharmacy segment will continue for 2016
and beyond through the previously mentioned revenue growth opportunities, management will also continue to pursue operational
efficiencies and cost savings to offset the potential impact of regulatory changes, increased competition and investments in
administrative start-up costs new RFPs may require. In addition, the Company expects that it can further leverage its existing
facilities to support an expanded multi-province customer base.
The Western expansion of the Specialty Pharmacy segment significantly strengthened the Company's value proposition by
enhancing its ability to service those customers with operations in multiple provinces, many of which prefer to be serviced by a
single provider for most or all of its seniors communities, giving rise to business opportunities not previously available to the
Company. It also provided important diversification across the existing payer base. By delivering services across a number of
provinces, the segment has diversified its revenue with less reliance on any one government payer. In addition, the Specialty
Pharmacy segment benefits from the scale of national operations from a management and operational perspective.
The Company will continue to explore strategic, tuck-in acquisitions within the Specialty Pharmacy segment to further strengthen
its national delivery platform.
Leveraging the significant expertise and capabilities added with the acquisition of Pharmacare, the Company has and continues
to expect to capitalize on a shift in the Canadian pharmacy industry resulting in an expanded scope of practice for pharmacists as
they are increasingly being recognized as the medication management experts of the health care team. In addition, the Company
expects that pharmacovigilance will be increasingly valued by customers and patients as the number of seniors, who are typically
on multiple medications at any given time and who are typically on more medications as they age, continues to grow.
On October 1, 2015 the Ontario Ministry of Health and Long Term Care ("MOHLTC") implemented amendments to Ontario
Regulation 201/96 under the Ontario Drug Benefit Act ("ODBA") which regulates the Ontario Pharmacy industry. These changes,
localized to Ontario, demonstrate the importance of the Company's national specialty pharmacy platform. The acquisition of
Pharmacare meaningfully diversified the Specialty Pharmacy segment’s revenues beyond Ontario (prior thereto, all Specialty
Pharmacy revenue was generated in Ontario) and the Company expects that further growth of its business in Western Canada will
continue to diversify its revenue from this segment. Centric management believes that efficiencies the Company can continue to
realize in its Specialty Pharmacy business, as well as revisions to its seniors community pharmacy service model in Ontario related
to ancillary services, will serve to partly offset the impact on the profitability of its Specialty Pharmacy segment. In this context,
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Centric will continue to focus and deliver on its primary objective of achieving the highest levels of quality care and safe medication
services.
Surgical and Medical Centres
Growth in the Company’s Surgical and Medical Centres segment is expected to be driven primarily by increasing the utilization
of the existing network capacity through a multi-faceted strategy that includes expanding partnerships with local physicians and
health authorities, marketing and brand development and the continued introduction of innovative programs and new technologies.
Efforts to further expand the roster of physicians and surgical privileges to optimize operating room capacity are ongoing at all of
the Company's surgical centres. Additionally, Centric continues to pursue opportunities to work alongside governments, health
authorities and hospitals to find opportunities to relieve surgical wait-lists through new partnerships and business models.
The benefits of the strategic positioning of the centres as partners with physicians, hospitals and health authorities are beginning
to be realized as is demonstrated by the year-over-year increase in revenue in 2015 and the first half of 2016. A key contributor to
this growth has been and is expected to continue to be the continued roll-out and ramp up of bariatrics across all of the Company’s
Surgical Centres. The Surgical and Medical Centres segment is also focused on increasing its online presence to generate new
business leads.
In 2015 the Company undertook significant renovation to its False Creek location in Vancouver, British Columbia to further
enhance the patient experience and ensure that the facility continues to meet and exceed all accreditation standards, which resulted
in work disruption of the facility over the period.
As the Company continues to pursue opportunities to increase utilization within its Surgical Centre network, due to its limited
scale, the segment remains susceptible to one-time events which may impact Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin,
though the overall growth in revenue is indicative of continued progress in the segment.
Corporate Infrastructure
Upon announcement of the Sale Transaction, the Company immediately began a rightsizing initiative of its corporate functions.
The rightsizing initiatives have been substantially completed and the Company currently has a run rate for corporate office expenses
as a proportion of Revenue from continuing operations in line with its target of 4%. Due to the timing of the Sale Transaction, the
corporate office expenses for the 2015 comparative periods include costs associated with, primarily, salaries and benefits of
resources that were included as part of the divestiture or were eliminated subsequent to the closing of the transaction on December
31, 2015.
Management believes overall profitability can be improved through further optimization of corporate infrastructure. The Company
continues to implement opportunities to reduce corporate costs as a proportion of consolidated revenue through centralization of
functions, rightsizing, achieving deeper synergies amongst the operating segments through coordinated business development
efforts and managing discretionary spend and professional fees.
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Selected Financial Information
The following selected financial information as at and for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014,
have been derived from the consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with those financial statements
and related notes. The results of acquisitions are added from their respective dates of completion. Non-IFRS measures are defined
and reconciled in the Reconciliation of Non-IFRS Measures section.
For the three month periods ended
June 30,
2016
2015
2014
$
$
$
43,264
41,545
33,975

(thousands of Canadian Dollars)

Revenue

For the six month periods ended
June 30,
2016
2015
2014
$
$
$
84,239
78,624
66,515

Loss from continuing operations

(2,778)

(2,585)

(2,603)

(3,977)

(6,608)

(5,493)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before interest expense and income taxes

(6,981)

365

(4,972)

(8,421)

(5,092)

(7,389)

EBITDA2 from continuing operations

(3,987)

3,081

(2,588)

(2,447)

185

(2,611)

4,082
$0.03

2,751
$0.02

1,111
$0.01

6,902
$0.04

3,869
$0.02

2,140
$0.02

9.4%

6.6%

3.3%

8.2%

4.9%

3.2%

4,082
$0.03
9.4%

9,622
$0.06
10.6%

8,237
$0.05
7.3%

6,902
$0.04
8.2%

16,966
$0.11
9.7%

14,954
$0.11
6.7%

(11,447)
($0.07)

(7,054)
($0.04)

(21,952)
$(0.15)

(21,469)
($0.13)

(19,390)
($0.12)

(49,911)
$(0.37)

Cash flow from operations

(4,906)

12,697

8,610

(12,114)

14,706

12,442

Total assets from continuing operations
Total liabilities from continuing operations

126,580
131,044

377,581
362,636

313,236
347,250

126,580
131,044

377,581
362,636

313,236
347,250

2

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing
operations
Per share - Basic and diluted
Adjusted EBITDA Margin from continuing
operations
Adjusted EBITDA2
Per share - Basic and diluted
Adjusted EBITDA Margin
Net loss
3

Per share - Basic and diluted

2

Defined in Reconciliation of Non-IFRS Measures

3

Earnings per share is based on the earnings attributable to shareholders of Centric Health Corporation.
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Results of Consolidated Operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
Revenues
The Company's Revenue for the three month period ended June 30, 2016 increased by 4.1%, or $1.7 million, to $43.3 million from
$41.5 million for the same period in the prior year. This increase was primarily driven by organic growth in both the Specialty
Pharmacy and Surgical and Medical Centres segments. Revenue continued to be impacted by the reduction in the ODB dispensing
fee that became effective on October 1, 2015. The net impact on Revenue for the quarter related to this regulatory change, which
partially offset the organic growth, was approximately $1.1 million.
The Company's Revenue for the six month period ended June 30, 2016 increased by 7.1%, or $5.6 million, to $84.2 million from
$78.6 million for the same period in the prior year.
Going forward, management expects continued organic growth from each of the segments; however, management also expects
that the timing and cycles of the contract procurement process (and time required to realize Revenue from formal procurement
RFP processes), could result in some fluctuation of organic growth rates over time.
Expenses
Cost of healthcare services and supplies includes practitioner consultant fees associated with the surgical services, the cost of
medical supplies and the cost of pharmaceuticals sold. Cost of healthcare services and supplies for the three and six month periods
ended June 30, 2016 increased by 5.3% and 8.7% to $26.9 million and $53.1 million, as compared to $25.6 million and $48.8
million for the same period last year. Cost of healthcare services and supplies remained relatively consistent as a percentage of
Revenue at 62.2% and 63.0% for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, as compared to 61.5% and 62.1% for the
comparable period in 2015.
Employee costs include salaries and benefits of employees working directly in each business segment. For the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2016, employee costs were $4.3 million and $8.8 million as compared to $4.4 million and $8.6 million for
the same period last year. Employee costs as a percentage of Revenue decreased for the three and six month periods ended June
30, 2016 to 9.9% and 10.5% from 10.7% and 11.0% for the same period last year.
Other operating expenses include occupancy costs, insurance, communication, advertising and promotion and administrative
expenses incurred at the operational level. Other operating expenses for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 were
$6.2 million and $12.0 million as compared to $6.1 million and $11.4 million for the comparable period in the prior year. Other
operating expenses have remained relatively consistent at approximately 14.4% and 14.2% of Revenue for the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2016 compared to 14.7% and 14.5% of Revenue for the same period in the prior year.
Corporate office expenses include shared service costs for the operating segments, salaries and benefits, occupancy costs,
insurance, communication, advertising and promotion, public company costs, board fees and other costs of the corporate office.
Corporate office expenses for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 were $1.7 million and $3.3 million as compared
to $2.7 million and $5.8 million for the comparable period in the prior year. The Company's corporate costs decreased as a percentage
of revenue over the comparative year to 3.8% and 3.9% for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 from 6.4% and
7.4% for the comparable periods in the prior year as a result of the out-sized corporate costs to support the since discontinued
operations. The rightsizing initiatives have been substantially completed and the Company currently has a run rate for corporate
office expenses as a proportion of Revenue from continuing operations in line with its target of 4%.
Depreciation and amortization were $3.1 million and $6.1 million for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 as
compared to $2.7 million and $5.3 million for the same period in the prior year.
Share-based compensation expense, a non-cash expense, decreased for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 at
$0.2 million and $0.4 million from $0.3 million and $0.7 million for the comparable period in the prior year.
Transaction, restructuring and other costs decreased for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 to $3.7 million
and $4.5 million from $2.4 million and $4.5 million in the comparable period in the prior year primarily due to the acquisition of
Pharmacare in 2015. Transaction, restructuring and other costs, including legal, consulting and due diligence fees directly related
to business combinations, as well as severance costs, start-up costs for new initiatives and legal and consulting costs for business
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restructuring, are expensed as incurred. Start-up costs for new initiatives are costs incurred by the Company for a new business
initiative prior to this initiative generating any revenue.
Loss from operations for the three month period ended June 30, 2016 was $2.8 million or 6.4% of Revenue, as compared to a
loss of $2.6 million or 6.2% of Revenue for the comparable period in the prior year. Loss from operations for the six month period
ended June 30, 2016 was $4.0 million or 4.7% compared to $6.6 million or 8.4% of Revenue for the same period in the prior year.
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations improved by 48.4% and 78.4% to $4.1 million and $6.9 million for the three and
six month periods ended June 30, 2016 from $2.8 million and $3.9 million for the same period in the prior year. The Adjusted
EBITDA margin for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 was 9.4% and 8.2% as compared to 6.6% and 4.9%
over the same period in the prior year. The increase in Adjusted EBITDA is reflective of the accretive contribution from the
acquisition of Pharmacare and organic growth realized in core businesses between these periods, partially offset by the impact of
the ODB changes. In addition, due to the timing of the Sale Transaction, the corporate office expenses for the 2015 comparative
periods include costs associated with, primarily, salaries and benefits of resources that were included as part of the divestiture or
were eliminated subsequent to the closing of the Sale Transaction on December 31, 2015.
Interest expense for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 was $3.7 million and $11.9 million as compared to $9.0
million and $17.3 million for the comparable period in the prior year. Interest expense relates to the Term Loan, the Notes, Revolving
Facility, the distribution on preferred partnership units, the related party loan obtained in November 2010 and renegotiated in
November 2013, the capital leases assumed in acquisitions and the convertible debentures issued in December 2011, February
2012, May 2012 and September 2012. Net interest expense excluding amortization, accretion, gain on settlement of swaps and
loss on repayment of borrowings for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 was $1.8 million and $6.0 million as
compared to $6.8 million and $13.2 million in the prior year.
For the three month periods ended
June 30,

For the six month periods ended
June 30,

2016

2015

2016

2015

$

$

$

$

Interest on term loan, revolving facility and second lien
senior secured notes

891

4,869

3,784

9,525

Amortization of loan arrangement fees

38

297

1,582

614

Interest on related party amounts

76

75

152

149

Accretion of related party loan discounts

125

101

244

197

7

10

15

17

(thousands of Canadian Dollars)

Interest on capital leases
Amortization of deferred gain on interest rate swap

—

(3)

—

(8)

Interest on convertible debt

791

828

1,621

1,649

Accretion on convertible debt

1,404

1,275

2,886

2,488

Accretion on preferred partnership units

—

332

805

651

Accretion on loans receivable

—

—

—

(22)

Gain on settlement of swaps

—

(14)

—

(14)

Loss on repayment of borrowings

321

166

321

166

3,653

7,936

11,410

15,412

—

1,029

730

2,058

3,653

8,965

12,140

17,470

(1)

(12)

(277)

(161)

3,652

8,953

11,863

17,309

Interest expense before distributions for preferred
partnership units
Distributions for preferred partnership units
Total interest expense
Interest income
Net interest expense

The change in fair value of derivative financial instruments represents a gain of $20.0 thousand and $0.1 million for the three
and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 compared to a gain of $2.6 million and $1.6 million for the comparative period in the
prior year. The change in fair value of the derivative financial instruments includes changes in components of debt offerings and
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the change in fair value of redemption features included in certain of the Company's debt arrangements. The fluctuation of these
balances are reflective of various factors including changes in the Company's share price, interest rates and credit spreads.
For the three month period ended June 30, 2016, the Company recognized a loss on the fair value of contingent consideration
liabilities of $4.2 million as compared to a gain of $0.4 million for the comparative period in the prior year. For the six month
period ended June 30, 2016, the company recognized a loss of $4.5 million as compared to a loss of $0.1 million for the comparative
period in the prior year. The Company is required to value contingent consideration liabilities pursuant to its business combination
activities. The Company's valuation method to determine the value of contingent consideration is largely based on the value of
common shares, risk adjusted discount rates and the probability of the acquired business achieving stated performance targets.
Warrants accrue to the vendors subject to achieving outperformance of earnings targets. The valuation of contingent consideration
on the date the acquisition closes becomes part of the total consideration in the purchase price allocation. Subsequently, the
contingent consideration is revalued on each reporting date with changes in fair value included in the statement of income and
comprehensive income.
The income tax expense was $0.8 million and $0.1 million for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 compared to
a recovery of $0.7 million and $0.9 million for the same period in the prior year. As at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the
Company had gross loss carry forwards amounting to $58.0 million and $63.2 million and net capital losses of $1.5 million and
$nil that can be carried forward against future taxable income based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections
for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible. The Company did not recognize deferred
tax assets of $15.5 million and $15.8 million with respect to these losses.
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Results of Segmented Operations
This section presents the results of operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 for the two
operating segments of the Company. As a result of the Company completing the Sale Transaction on December 31, 2015, the
Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") amended the manner in which the business is operated and, as such,
management revised how financial information is presented to the CODM. As a result, the Company amended its reportable
operating segments and now presents two reportable operating segments rather than three reportable operating segments as was
presented prior to the close of the Sale Transaction. Operating segments, as reported to the CODM, are as follows: Specialty
Pharmacy, and Surgical and Medical Centres. The Performance Orthotics business, which was previously reported in the
Physiotherapy, Rehabilitation and Assessments segment, is now reported as part of the Surgical and Medical Centres segment.
Comparative balances have been amended to reflect the presentation of the two reportable operating segments. The support services
provided through the corporate offices largely support the operations of the Company. Certain amounts of these costs have been
allocated to the operating segments based on the extent of corporate management's involvement in the operations of the reportable
segment during the period.
For the three month periods ended June 30,

Revenue
$

$

$

%

2015
$

31,813
11,451

31,215

4,287

13.5

4,540

14.5

10,330

1,500

13.1

873

8.5

—

—

(1,705)

—

(2,662)

—

43,264

41,545

4,082

9.4

2,751

6.6

2015

2016
(thousands of Canadian Dollars)

Specialty Pharmacy
Surgical and Medical Centres
Corporate
Total

For the six month periods ended June 30,

(thousands of Canadian Dollars)

Specialty Pharmacy
Surgical and Medical Centres
Corporate
Total

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations

Revenue

2016

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations

2016

2015

2016

$

$

62,115
22,124

58,223
20,401

—
84,239

—
78,624

$
7,569
2,680
(3,347)
6,902

18

%

2015
%

$

%

12.2
12.1
—
8.2

8,058
1,653
(5,842)
3,869

13.8
8.1
—
4.9
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Specialty Pharmacy
Revenues for Specialty Pharmacy increased 1.9% to $31.8 million from $31.2 million for the three month period ended June 30,
2016 as compared to the same period in the prior year. The growth in revenue is primarily due to organic growth through the
increase in the number of beds serviced, script counts and ancillary services offered to existing customers. Revenue growth was
partially offset by the impact of the reduction in the ODB dispensing fee that became effective as of October 1, 2015.
Adjusted EBITDA decreased 5.6% to $4.3 million from $4.5 million and Adjusted EBITDA margin declined to 13.5% from 14.5%
over the same period. Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin were also impacted by the reduction in the ODB dispensing
fee, although the impact was partially offset by organic growth and cost containment measures. The impact of the ODB changes
for the quarter was approximately $1.0 million, which was higher than the Company's initial expectations before the changes
became in effect. The Company's primary objective is to maintain its high standard of patient service and safety such that the ODB
changes could not be fully absorbed in the short term. With the western expansion strategy, coupled with additional lean cost
containment initiatives and expected organic growth across the national platform, the Company believes it will be able to maintain
its historical double-digit Adjusted EBITDA margins in the short-term and reach an Adjusted EBITDA margin in the mid-teens
over the medium-term without compromising the quality of patient care. Given the landscape of the Ontario market, the Company
expects to further diversify its exposure to existing payers by focusing on organic growth in the Western markets.
For the six month period ended June 30, 2016, Revenue for Specialty Pharmacy increased by 6.7% or $3.9 million to $62.1 million
from $58.2 million for the same period in the prior year. The Adjusted EBITDA decreased 6.1% to $7.6 million from $8.1 million
and the Adjusted EBITDA margin declined to 12.2% from 13.8% over the same period. The growth is driven primarily from the
acquisition of Pharmacare in March 2015 and organic growth, partially offset by the impact of the ODB changes.
Surgical and Medical Centres
The Surgical and Medical Centres segment Revenue increased 10.9% to $11.5 million from $10.3 million for the three month
period ended June 30, 2016 compared to prior year. Adjusted EBITDA increased 71.8% to $1.5 million from $0.9 million. The
Adjusted EBITDA margin improved to 13.1% for the quarter, compared to 8.5% for the comparable period in the prior year.
For the six month period ended June 30, 2016, Revenue grew by 8.4% to $22.1 million from $20.4 million for the same period in
the prior year. Adjusted EBITDA increased 62.1% to $2.7 million from $1.7 million. The Adjusted EBITDA margin was 12.1%
compared to 8.1% for the prior year period.
Growth in the Surgical and Medical Centres has benefited from the strategic positioning of the centres as partners with physicians,
hospitals and health authorities, and is again demonstrated by the Revenue increase over the same period in the prior year for the
three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016. As previously mentioned, several of Centric's surgical centres underwent and
achieved continuing accreditations from overseeing bodies, demonstrating the benefit of continued investment in quality and
excellence across each of the centres. In addition, a number of one time events such as the False Creek renovations, training costs
and accreditation and licensing fees that occurred in the prior year did not repeat themselves in 2016. The Adjusted EBITDA
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growth and the improvement in the Adjusted EBITDA margin for the three month periods ended June 30, 2016 have continued to
show the benefits from the investments that the Company has made into the segment.
Corporate Office
Following the Sale Transaction, the Company has undertaken a rightsizing initiative of its corporate functions. The rightsizing
initiatives have been substantially completed and the Company currently has a run rate for corporate office expenses as a proportion
of Revenue from continuing operations in line with its target of 4%. Due to the timing of the Sale Transaction, the corporate office
expenses for the 2015 comparative periods include costs associated with, primarily, salaries and benefits of resources that were
included as part of the divestiture or were eliminated subsequent to the closing of the transaction on December 31, 2015.
Discontinued Operations
The Company's discontinued operations consist of the businesses divested as part of the Sale Transaction, including the
physiotherapy and rehabilitations clinics, medical assessments business, Active and CAR, as well as the methadone pharmacy
operations, the Sarnia surgical centre operations, Windsor Endoscopy Centre and Sleep Clinic.
Revenue from discontinued operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 were $nil and $nil compared to
$49.5 million and $96.0 million for the same periods in 2015. Adjusted EBITDA from discontinued operations for the three and
six month periods ended June 30, 2016 were $nil and $nil compared to $6.9 million and $13.1 million during the same periods in
2015.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company manages its capital structure based on the funds available to the Company in order to support the continuation and
expansion of its operations. The Board of Directors establishes quantitative return on capital criteria, which it reviews with
management on a regular basis. The Company defines capital to include share capital, warrants and the stock option component
of its shareholders' equity as well as its Revolving Facility, the Notes, convertible debts, preferred partnership units and contingent
consideration. In addition to the cash flow generated by operations, the Company relies on debt and equity financing from both
arm's length and related parties to execute on its stated business strategy. In order to maintain or adjust its capital structure, the
Company may seek financing through the issuance of securities such as convertible debt, or by replacing existing debt with debt
on terms more consistent with the Company's needs.
On July 27, 2015, the Company announced that its Board had initiated a process to consider and evaluate strategic alternatives
available to the Company following unsolicited interest in certain businesses of the Company. The Company has previously
disclosed that it was exploring opportunities to maximize shareholder value which included additional divestitures of existing
businesses. In light of these circumstances, the Company established a Special Committee composed of directors who are
independent of management to oversee the strategic review process.
On December 31, 2015, the Company completed the Sale Transaction, which included the sale of substantially all of the businesses
within its Physiotherapy, Rehabilitation and Medical Assessments segment to Audax Private Equity for cash consideration on
closing of approximately $245.0 million (subject to working capital adjustments), of which $3.0 million will be held in escrow up
to June 30, 2017 to support certain representations and warranties the Company made as part of the sale agreement. In addition
to the cash received, the purchase consideration also included up to $5.0 million in contingent consideration. The Company has
used a substantial portion of the net proceeds received on closing of approximately $234.0 million to repay $208.6 million of debt
in accordance with the terms of the various debt agreements currently in place.
On February 22, 2016, the Company paid $169.1 million to the holders of the Notes with a par value of $164.3 million, which
included $4.8 million of accrued interest, leaving Notes with a principal balance of $25.9 million remaining. In conjunction with
the payment of the Notes, the Company amended the trust indenture. The amendments provide the Company, subject to certain
limitations, with additional flexibility to, among other things, repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire for value or retire its
outstanding securities, make interest and principal payments on subordinated debt, incur additional indebtedness, alter the size of
the Revolving Facility, make distributions to shareholders, and make additional acquisitions and dispositions.
On March 4, 2016, using $30.0 million of the net proceeds from the Sale Transaction and a promissory note, Lifemark Health
Limited Partnership redeemed all of its issued and outstanding remaining preferred partnership units, all of which were held by
Alaris Income Growth Fund Partnership (“Alaris”), for the full repurchase price of approximately $38.4 million. Immediately
upon redemption of the preferred partnership units and payment of $30.0 million in cash, Alaris loaned the Company approximately
$8.4 million as a promissory note on substantially the same economic terms as applied to the equivalent value of preferred partnership
units, which the Company repaid in full on March 23, 2016.
On March 23, 2016, the Company amended its 5.5% April 2016 Convertible Noteholders ("April 2016 CDs") on the following
terms: (i) the maturity date would be extended from April 30, 2016 to July 31, 2017, (ii) the interest rate payable under the April
2016 CDs would be increased from 5.5% to 6.5% from and including May 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 and (iii) the conversion price
would be decreased from $0.9229 per share to $0.52 per share from and including May 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 (collectively, the
"Amended 2016 Note Terms"). The holders of $9.1 million principal amount agreed to accept the Amended 2016 Note Terms. On
May 2, 2016, the Company paid a $0.1 million cash consent fee (representing 1.333% of the principal amount) to the holders of
the April 2016 CDs who accepted the Amended 2016 Note Terms, and the noteholders holding the remaining April 2016 CDs for
$5.9 million principal outstanding were repaid at par plus accrued and unpaid interest of $0.2 million.
On March 22, 2016, the lenders of the Revolving Facility amended the credit agreement, which was scheduled to mature on June
9, 2016, for a two year extension. The extended Revolving Facility will now mature on March 22, 2018 and will bear interest on
a sliding scale from prime plus 1.25% to prime plus 2.75% for principal borrowed and a range of 0.56% to 0.94% for standby fees
for amounts not borrowed. The Revolving Facility's capacity will remain at $35.0 million, with an additional $15.0 million accordion
available subject to lender approval.
The renewed Revolving Facility, along with any remaining proceeds from the Sale Transaction, should provide the Company with
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sufficient funding and flexibility to invest in growing the ongoing businesses and manage its cash requirements through 2016,
within the restraints of the amended facility's covenants. The Company intends to repay the convertible debentures that mature in
December 2016 with any of the remaining proceeds or the combination of remaining proceeds and the Revolving Facility, as
permitted under the terms of the credit agreement. The Company is also reviewing strategic alternatives for the debt obligations
that mature in 2017.
Following the closing of the Sale Transaction, the Company initiated a corporate restructuring program to right size the Company
and optimize the corporate infrastructure for the remaining businesses. The program included, but was not limited to, a new
corporate organizational structure and various cost containment initiatives.
With the completion of the Sale Transaction, the business restructuring program, the subsequent repayment of a significant portion
of the Notes, preferred partnership units and April 2016 CDs and the renewed Revolving Facility, the Company anticipates it will
be in compliance with the new covenants in its Revolving Facility during 2016 and continue to generate sufficient cash flow to
meet its obligations as they come due through existing cash flows, future organic growth, ongoing operational improvements and
cost containment initiatives. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in achieving the results targeted in
its operating plan for each of the quarters in 2016.
The continuity of restricted cash is as follows:
$
Restricted cash balance on December 31, 2014
Purchase of Pharmacare
Restricted cash applied to capital expenditures and transaction costs
Return of temporary repayment from Revolving Facility
Repayment of second lien senior secured notes
Interest earned
Remaining cash applied to Revolving Facility
Divestiture of the Sale Transaction, net of estimated transaction costs
Restricted cash balance as of December 31, 2015

36.3
(26.0)
(10.1)
10.0
(10.0)
0.1
(0.3)
236.9
236.9

Repayment of second lien senior secured notes and accrued interest
Repayment of Alaris principal
Repayment of borrowings on the Revolving Facility
Interest earned
Remaining proceeds released from restrictions following the repurchase of Notes
Restricted cash balance as of June 30, 2016

(169.1)
(38.4)
(16.7)
0.3
(10.0)
3.0

Cash Flow
Cash flow activities for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 were as follows:
Operating Activities
For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, cash used in operating activities was $4.9 million and $12.1 million
compared to cash provided by operating activities of $12.7 million and $14.7 million for the comparable period in the prior year.
The negative cash flow from operations was due to timing of payments, particularly for the accrued transaction costs of
approximately $6.5 million associated with the Sale Transaction in December 2015, and continued focus on operational and working
capital initiatives. The Company has historically generated positive cash flows from operating activities and anticipates that the
cash flow from operations will be positive going forward.
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Investing Activities
For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, the Company had a use of cash of $0.9 million and a source of cash of
$223.0 million from investing activities as compared to a use of cash of $2.0 million and $1.6 million for the comparable period
in the prior year. The change is primarily due to the use of the proceeds from the Sale Transaction to repay debt during the three
month period ended June 30, 2016.
Capital expenditures have decreased from $2.0 million and $3.2 million for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2015
to $0.3 million and $0.6 million for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 due to the completion of capital projects,
including the renovations at the False Creek Surgical Centre and the Don Mills Surgical Unit, and continued focus on managing
cash flows.
Financing Activities
During the six month period ended June 30, 2016, the Company repaid $14.0 million to its Revolving Facility ($8.0 million
withdrawal during the three month period ended June 30, 2016), a portion of which was from the remaining proceeds from the
Sale Transaction. The Company paid $3.0 million and $8.8 million in cash interest on its borrowings for the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2016, as compared to $12.6 million and $12.9 million for the comparable period in the prior year. The
decrease in interest paid is consistent with the Company's debt reduction efforts.
The Company had a cash balance of $4.3 million on hand as at June 30, 2016 representing the remaining balance of the restricted
cash released following the amendment to the Notes' trust indenture. The Company maintains a long-term view of its cash on hand
and debt repayment plans as outlined in its Business Strategy.

23

CENTRIC HEALTH CORPORATION
JUNE 30, 2016
$ millions of Canadian dollars (except for per share amounts, and where otherwise noted)

Contractual Commitments
The Company's contractual commitments at June 30, 2016, are as follows:

Trade payables and other amounts
Second lien senior secured notes
Convertible borrowings
Related party convertible loan
Revolving Facility
Finance leases
Interest payments on borrowings
Operating leases

Total
$
20.1
25.9
47.4
5.0
17.0
0.6
8.0
7.7
131.7

2016
$
20.1
—
10.8
—

2017-2018
$
—
25.9
36.6
5.0

—

17.0

0.2
2.8
1.2
35.1

0.5
5.2
3.6
93.8

2019-2020
$
—
—

—
—
—
—
1.8
1.8

Thereafter
$
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
1.2
1.2

On April 18, 2013, the Company completed the $200.0 million public offering of the Notes, which bear interest at 8.625% and
mature on April 18, 2018. On June 25, 2015, the Company purchased an aggregate of 9,842 Notes for a total principal amount of
$9.8 million plus $0.2 million in accrued and unpaid interest, representing an aggregate of $10.0 million, resulting in a permanent
reduction on the balance of the Notes. As previously discussed, the Company announced on February 19, 2016 that holders of the
Notes with a par value of $164.3 million agreed to the January 19, 2016 par offer from the Company and participate and surrender
their Notes. On February 22, 2016, the Company paid $169.1 million, which included accrued interest up to the date of payment,
which left Notes with a principal balance of $25.9 million remaining.
In March 2016, using $30.0 million of the net proceeds from the Sale Transaction and a promissory note, Lifemark Health Limited
Partnership redeemed all of its issued and outstanding remaining Units, all of which were held by Alaris, for the full repurchase
price of approximately $38.4 million. Immediately upon redemption of the Units and payment of $30.0 million in cash, Alaris
loaned the Company approximately $8.4 million as the Alaris Promissory Note on substantially the same economic terms as applied
to the equivalent value of Units. On March 23, 2016, the Company repaid the full amount of the $8.4 million promissory note
together with accrued and unpaid interest of $0.1 million to Alaris.
The Company incurs interest on its Revolving Facility. Future interest to be paid on the Revolving Facility cannot be reasonably
determined due to the ongoing fluctuation of the Revolving Facility balance. On March 22, 2016, the lenders of the Revolving
Facility amended the credit agreement, which was scheduled to mature on June 9, 2016, for a two year extension. The extended
Revolving Facility will now mature on March 22, 2018 and will bear interest on a sliding scale from prime plus 1.25% to prime
plus 2.75% for principal borrowed and a range of 0.56% to 0.94% for standby fees for amounts not borrowed. The Revolving
Facility's capacity will remain at $35.0 million, with an additional $15.0 million accordion available subject to lender approval.
The Company has $5.0 million in convertible debt with a related party which may be settled in cash or common shares at the
option of the holder and $47.4 million in convertible debt from public and private offerings which principal and interest the
Company can elect to settle in common shares of the Company. On May 2, 2016, the Company extended $9.1 million of the April
2016 CDs to a maturity date of July 31, 2017 and paid the Noteholders holding the remaining convertible debentures for $5.9
million of principal outstanding at par plus accrued and unpaid interest of $0.2 million.
The Company intends to repay the convertible debentures that mature in December 2016 and is reviewing strategic alternatives
for the debt obligations that mature in 2017.
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into significant commitments for the purchase of goods and services, such
as the purchase of inventory, most of which are short-term in nature and are settled under normal trade terms.
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Equity
As at June 30, 2016, the Company had total shares outstanding of 162,952,967. The outstanding shares include 201,025 shares
which are restricted or held in escrow and will be released to certain vendors of acquired businesses based on the achievement of
certain performance targets. In the event that performance targets are not met, escrowed shares are subject to reduction and
cancellation based on formulas specific to each transaction. Escrowed and restricted shares are not reflected in the shares reported
on the Company's financial statements. Accordingly, for financial reporting purposes, the Company reported 162,751,942 common
shares outstanding as at June 30, 2016 and 160,882,600 shares outstanding at December 31, 2015.
The Company has convertible borrowings outstanding at June 30, 2016 where the conversion is at the option of the Company as
follows:
Principal ($)

Number of Common
Shares Issuable

Maturity

Interest Rate

Directed share program
Private placement

10.8
9.1

3,464,103
17,461,538

December 22, 2016
July 31, 2017

6.00%
6.50%

Public debt
Total convertible debt

27.5
47.4

24,553,571
45,479,212

October 31, 2017

6.75%

Jamon promissory note
Total promissory notes

5.0
5.0

10,869,565
10,869,565

April 30, 2018

6.00%

Debt instrument

On January 1, 2015, the Company released 300,000 restricted shares to the Company's CEO.
On March 2, 2015, the Company issued 4,347,826 common shares as part of the consideration for the acquisition of Pharmacare.
The shares became freely tradeable upon closing of the acquisition.
On March 18, 2015, the Company issued 1,351,352 common shares as part of an independent third party services agreement related
to the acquisition of Pharmacare. The shares were issued at the market price at the date immediately prior to the issuance of $0.37
per share. The shares are being treated as part of transaction costs related to the closing of the acquisition.
On March 18, 2015 the Company issued 835,000 restricted share units to management and employees which entitled the holders
to 835,000 common shares of the Company. These restricted share units have been fair-valued based on the quoted market price
on the date of issuance of $0.385 per share and vest over three years.
On March 31, 2015, the Company issued 1,000,000 stock options to management and employees as part of the acquisition of
Pharmacare. All of the options were issued at a strike price of $0.40.
In June 2015, the Company issued 961,672 common shares to certain members of management and employees related to restricted
share units that have vested.
On August 31, 2015 and September 3, 2015, the Company issued 89,875 and 237,891 common shares, respectively, related to
contingent consideration payments for the settlement of earnouts of three physiotherapy clinics.
In December 2015, the Company issued 204,998 common shares to certain members of management and employees related to
restricted share units that have vested.
On February 9, 2016, the Company released 1,075,000 common shares from escrow related to the settlement of contingent
consideration from the earnouts of the SmartShape acquisition.
In April 2016 and June 2016, the Company issued 291,669 and 202,673 common shares, respectively, to certain members of
management and employees related to restricted share units that have vested.
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On January 12, 2016, the Company issued 340,000 restricted share units in two tranches to management and employees which
entitle the holders to 340,000 common shares of the Company. These restricted share units have been fair-valued based on the
quoted market price on the effective date of the grants. The first tranche of 100,000 restricted share units, which have an effective
date of March 3, 2015, were fair-valued based on a quoted market price of $0.375 per share. The second tranche of 240,000
restricted share units, which have an effective date of August 4, 2015, were fair-valued based on a quoted market price of $0.265
per share. The restricted share units vest over three years.
As at June 30, 2016, there were a total of 4,895,500 options outstanding to purchase an equivalent number of common shares,
with a weighted average exercise price of $1.40, expiring at various dates through 2020. The number of exercisable options at
June 30, 2016, was 4,048,000 with a weighted average exercise price of $1.60.
As at June 30, 2016, there were a total of 1,921,311 restricted share units outstanding to grant an equivalent number of common
shares.
As at June 30, 2016, there were 3,641,507 warrants outstanding at a weighted average exercise price of $1.10.
Should all outstanding options and warrants that were exercisable at June 30, 2016 be exercised, the Company would receive
proceeds of $7.6 million.
As at the date of this report, August 9, 2016, the number of shares outstanding, including escrowed shares, is 163,521,959; the
number of options outstanding is 4,895,500; the number of warrants outstanding is 3,641,507; and the number of restricted share
units outstanding is 1,352,319. Included in the shares outstanding are 201,025 restricted shares, shares held in escrow, or in trust,
and are not freely tradable.
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Transactions with Related Parties
In the normal course of operations, the Company has entered into certain related party transactions for consideration established
with the related parties and are approved by the independent non-executive directors of the Company or are at market terms.
Related party transactions
Related party transactions, in addition to those entered into with Company directors and management, have been entered into with
GHIS and entities controlled by and related to the shareholders of GHIS including Jamon Investments LLC ("Jamon"), who own
59,551,287 shares or approximately 37% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company as at June 30, 2016. This
ownership percentage disclosed assumes the issuance of 201,025 escrowed and restricted shares in the total common shares
considered to be outstanding.
On March 21, 2013, GHIS and the Company negotiated an amended consulting agreement which eliminated the completion fees,
removed the consulting fees for the year ended December 31, 2013, and amended the consulting fees to $0.1 million per month
from January 2014 to the completion of the agreement in June 2015. In light of management's leadership, the Company and GHIS
agreed not to renew the advisory agreement at the end of the second quarter of 2015. The representatives of GHIS continue to
serve on the Board of Directors and various Committees of the Board of Directors. In addition, one of the Board members, who
is also a director and committee member of some of the underlying businesses, is assisting management on an interim basis.
Included in the results for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 are $30 thousand and $55 thousand of consulting
fees related to this arrangement.
For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, the Company incurred $nil and $nil for GHIS advisory fees (2015 - $0.2
million and $0.5 million), which were incurred for six months up to the completion of the agreement in June 2015, $nil and $nil
(2015 - $4 thousand and $39 thousands) in GHIS travel related expenses and $0.1 million and $0.2 milllion (2015 - $0.1 million
and $0.2 million) in interest on related party amounts.
Included in trade payables and other amounts at June 30, 2016 are $77 thousand (2015 - $27 thousand) due to GHIS and $75
thousand (2015 - $25 thousand) for interest payable to Jamon.
The Company holds a lease agreement for the use of a medical office as part of its Performance operations which is owned by a
director of Performance. The Company's lease expense for this location for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016
was $33 thousand and $65 thousand (2015 - $29 thousand and $59 thousand).
In June 2015, the Company entered into a service agreement with a corporation related to a member of senior management of the
Company whereby the Company will fill prescriptions from a customer list that the corporation has rights to in exchange for a
fixed fee per prescription. The fee is up to a maximum of $115 thousand over a twelve month period. For the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2016, the Company recorded an expense of $nil and $30 thousand related to the fee owed to the corporation.
Included in trade payables and other amounts at June 30, 2016 are $nil (2015 - $0.1 million) due to the corporation related to these
services.
Related party loans
The Company has a promissory note with Jamon for $5.0 million that bears interest at 6% with a conversion feature which is due
April 30, 2018. The conversion price for the note is $0.46 per share and the conversion of the note is at the option of the holder.
In addition to the promissory note, Jamon was issued a warrant to purchase 1,000,000 common shares of the Company at an
exercise price of $0.46 per share which expires on April 30, 2018.
In the third quarter of 2014, the Company launched a Key Employee Engagement Share Plan ("KEESP") to enable eligible
employees to acquire common shares of the Company. The KEESP allows employees to contribute towards the purchase of common
shares of the Company whereby the Company will match employee contributions by up to three times with payments capped at
a predetermined level. The portion of funds matched by the Company is repayable by the employees as a promissory note bearing
interest at 3% in equal annual installments over five years. A receivable from employees of $0.1 million (2015 - $0.1 million) has
been included in trade and other receivables.
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On August 14, 2012, the Company entered into a promissory note with the Company's CEO for $0.5 million who is a director and
officer of the Company. This promissory note bears interest at 4% per annum. The promissory note and related interest will be
forgiven by the Company if the CEO is employed on the maturity date of September 3, 2016. If the CEO resigns prior to September
3, 2016, the promissory note and related interest is repayable on demand. In addition, a private placement for 782,227 common
shares at a price of $0.64 per share and 782,227 warrants with an exercise price of $0.75 per share was completed with the CEO
on August 14, 2012.
On September 3, 2012, the Company issued 1,000,000 restricted shares to the Company's CEO, which vest over a four year period.
These shares are being treated as share-based compensation for accounting purposes, and an expense of $0.2 million was recorded
in the three month periods ended June 30, 2016, respectively. As of January 1, 2016, all of the restricted shares have been released
(200,000 shares released on January 1, 2013 and 2014, and 300,000 shares released on January 1, 2015 and 2016).
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Summary of Quarterly Results
Q2 2016
$

Q1 2016
$

Q4 2015 1
$

Q3 2015 1
$

43,264

40,975

41,906

41,891

4,082

2,820

1,745

2,764

$0.03
(11,447)

$0.02
(8,985)

$0.01
(5,327)

$0.02
(9,492)

$(0.07)

$(0.06)

$(0.03)

$(0.06)

4,082

2,820

6,613

8,211

$0.03

$0.02

$0.04

$0.05

(11,447)

(10,022)

70,220

(4,962)

$(0.07)

$(0.06)

$0.44

$(0.03)

Q2 2015 1
$

Q1 2015 1
$

Q4 2014 1
$

Q3 2014 1
$

41,545
2,751

37,079
1,118

34,823
1,370

33,870
1,811

Basic and diluted
Net loss from continuing operations
Earnings per share from continuing operations:

$0.02
(7,887)

$0.01
(13,592)

$0.01
(8,845)

$0.01
(10,512)

Basic and diluted
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA per share
Basic and diluted
Net income (loss)
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

($0.05)
9,622

$(0.09)
7,344

$(0.06)
6,992

$(0.07)
7,213

$0.06
(7,054)

$0.05
(12,336)

$0.05
(8,035)

$0.05
742

$(0.04)

$(0.08)

$(0.05)

$—

(thousands of Canadian Dollars)

Revenue
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
Adjusted EBITDA per share from continuing
operations:
Basic and diluted
Net loss from continuing operations
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic and diluted
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA per share:

1,
7

(1)
,8

Basic and diluted
Net income (loss)

#D
IV/

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

Revenue
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
Adjusted EBITDA per share from continuing
operations:

1,
6

(2)
,2

1

Adjusted EBITDA includes a restatement of previously reported amounts in order to reflect the impact of discontinued operations for business that were divested
in 2014 and 2015.
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The Company has achieved steady growth in Revenue across its core operations over the past several quarters, driven by both
accretive acquisitions and organic growth. Consolidated Revenue from continuing operations has increased by $1.7 million, or
4.1%, for the second quarter of 2016 compared to the second quarter of 2015. Adjusted EBITDA has also increased during this
period compared to the same period in the prior year.
Due to the timing of the Sale Transaction, the corporate office expenses for the comparative periods in 2015 included costs associated
with, primarily, salaries and benefits of resources that were included as part of the divestiture or were terminated. Upon
announcement of the Sale Transaction, the Company immediately began a rightsizing initiative of its corporate functions. The
rightsizing initiatives have been substantially completed and the Company currently has a run rate for corporate office expenses
as a proportion of Revenue from continuing operations in line with its target of 4%. Adjusting for a normalized corporate office
expense of 4% of Revenue, EBITDA for the three month period ending June 30, 2015 would have been $3.7 million, which results
in 9.1% year-over-year growth during the second quarter of 2016.
The volatility in net earnings quarter over quarter is largely due to the fluctuations in contingent consideration, transaction and
restructuring costs and impairments. The Company is required to value the contingent consideration liabilities pursuant to its
business combination activities. The Company's common share price has fluctuated significantly, affecting the quantum at which
the contingent consideration liabilities are valued at the end of each reporting period. Transaction, restructuring and other costs
are expensed as incurred. Transaction, restructuring and other costs tend to be proportionate with the size of any acquisitions
completed and any restructuring initiatives leading to fluctuations in charges against earnings in certain quarters in 2015 and 2016.
The Company continues to see year-over-year increases in both Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
following the strategic realignment of its business model and divestiture of non-core businesses during the second half of 2014
and the completion of the Pharmacare acquisition in March 2015 and the Sale Transaction in December 2015.
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Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company is
accumulated and communicated to the Company's management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (collectively the “Certifying Officers”) are responsible for establishing
and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (“DC&P”) and internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR”), as those
terms are defined in National Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuer's Annual and Interim Filings, for the Company.
The Certifying Officers have concluded that, as at June 30, 2016, the Company's DC&P has been designed effectively to provide
reasonable assurance that (a) material information relating to the Company is made known to them by others, particularly during
the period in which the annual filings are being prepared; and (b) information required to be disclosed by the Company in its annual
filings, interim filings or other reports filed or submitted, recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the securities legislation. They have also concluded that the Company's ICFR have been designed effectively to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the preparation and presentation of the financial statements for external purposes
and that ICFR were effective as at June 30, 2016. The Company used the COSO control framework to evaluate DC&P and ICFR.
It should be noted that while the Company's Certifying Officers believe that the Company's DC&P provides a reasonable level of
assurance that they are effective, they do not expect that the disclosure controls will prevent all errors and fraud. A control system,
no matter how well conceived or operated, can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control
system are met.
ICFR is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial
statements for external reporting purposes in line with International Financial Reporting Standards. Management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting appropriate to the nature and size of the
Company. However, any system of internal control over financial reporting has inherent limitations and can only provide reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.
There have been no significant changes to the Company's ICFR over the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, which
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Company's ICFR. Based on their evaluation of these controls
for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, the CEO and CFO have concluded that these controls are designed
effectively.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to estimate the effect of various matters that are inherently uncertain
as of the date of the financial statements. Each of these required estimates varies in regard to the level of judgment involved and
its potential impact on the Company's reported financial results. Estimates are deemed critical when a different estimate could
have reasonably been used or where changes in the estimate are reasonably likely to occur from period to period, and would
materially impact the Company's financial condition, changes in financial condition or results of operations.
Significant critical accounting estimates include the collectability of receivables, assessment of impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets, the recognition of contingent consideration and the valuation of deferred tax assets and tax provisions.
Collectability of receivables
The Company assesses the collectability of receivables on an ongoing basis. A provision for the impairment of receivables involves
significant management judgment and includes the review of individual receivables based on individual customer creditworthiness,
current economic trends and analysis of historical bad debts.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets Valuation
The Company performs an impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets on an annual basis and at any
other time if events or circumstances make it possible that impairment may have occurred. The Company also considers whether
there are any triggers for impairment at each quarter end. Determining whether impairment of goodwill has occurred requires a
valuation of the respective business unit, based on its fair value, which is based on a number of factors, including discounted cash
flows, future business plans, economic projections and market data.
An indefinite-life intangible asset is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired. The impairment test consists of a comparison of the fair value of the indefinite-life
intangible asset with its carrying amount. When the carrying amount of the indefinite-life intangible asset exceeds its fair value,
an impairment loss should be recognized in an amount equal to the excess.
The Company tests the valuation of goodwill and indefinite life intangibles as at August 31 of each year to determine whether or
not any impairment in the goodwill and intangible balances recorded exists. In addition, on a quarterly basis, management assesses
the reasonableness of assumptions used for the valuation to determine if further impairment testing is required.
Recognition of Contingent Consideration
The Company recognizes the fair value of contingent consideration relating to its business acquisitions at the date the transaction
closes and at each subsequent reporting date. The purchase price of most acquisitions is subject to the financial performance of
the businesses being acquired. The number of shares, either issued in escrow and subsequently released to the vendor, or to be
issued at a later date varies based on the business being acquired achieving predetermined earnings targets over a specified period.
In addition, warrants are issued when these performance targets are exceeded generally based on an accrual of warrants to the
extent of such excess. The exercise price of the warrants is based on the Company's share price at the date of closing. As a result
of this variability, the fair value of the contingent consideration is recorded as a financial liability irrespective of the fact that this
liability will be settled on a non-cash basis through the issuance of shares and warrants.
Subsequent changes in fair value between reporting periods are included in the determination of net income. Changes in fair value
arise as a result of changes in the Company's share price and changes in the estimated probability of achieving the earnings targets.
Shares issued or released from escrow in final settlement of contingent consideration are recognized at their fair value at the time
of issue with a corresponding reduction in the contingent consideration liability.
Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets
In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, the Company considers the extent to which it is probable that the deferred tax
asset will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits
during the period in which those temporary losses and tax loss carryforwards become deductible. The Company considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this assessment. The Company expects
that future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets except for an unrecognized deferred
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tax asset of $15.5 million which the Company has not recorded at June 30, 2016.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As at June 30, 2016, the Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements.
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Risks and Uncertainties
The business of Centric Health is subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. Prior to making any investment decision regarding
the Company, investors should carefully consider, among other things the risks described herein (including the section on caution
regarding forward looking statements).

Government Regulation and Funding
General Healthcare Regulation
Healthcare service providers in Canada are subject to various governmental regulation and licensing requirements and, as a result,
the Company's businesses operate in an environment in which government regulations and funding play a key role. The level of
government funding directly reflects government policy related to healthcare spending, and decisions can be made regarding such
funding that are largely beyond the businesses' control. Any change in governmental regulation, delisting of services, and licensing
requirements relating to healthcare services, or their interpretation and application, could adversely affect the business, financial
condition and results of operations of these business units. In addition, the Company could incur significant costs in the course of
complying with any changes in the regulatory regime. Non-compliance with any existing or proposed laws or regulations could
result in audits, civil or regulatory proceedings, fines, penalties, injunctions, recalls or seizures, any of which could adversely affect
the reputation, operations or financial performance of the Company.
Pharmacy Industry Regulation
With the acquisition of Pharmacare and the divestiture of the Company’s Rehabilitation, Physiotherapy and Assessments segment
in connection with the Sale Transaction, the Company is reliant on prescription drug sales for a more significant portion of its
sales and profits. Prescription drugs and their sales are subject to numerous federal, provincial, territorial and local laws and
regulations. Changes to these laws and regulations, or non-compliance with these laws and regulations, could adversely affect the
reputation, operations or financial performance of the Company.
Federal and provincial laws and regulations that establish public drug plans typically regulate prescription drug coverage, patient
eligibility, pharmacy reimbursement, drug product eligibility and drug pricing and may also regulate manufacturer allowance
funding that is provided to or received by pharmacy or pharmacy suppliers. With respect to pharmacy reimbursement, such laws
and regulations typically regulate the allowable drug cost of a prescription drug product, the permitted mark-up on a prescription
drug product and the professional or dispensing fees that may be charged on prescription drug sales to patients eligible under the
public drug plan. With respect to drug product eligibility, such laws and regulations typically regulate the requirements for listing
the manufacturer’s products as a benefit or partial benefit under the applicable governmental drug plan, drug pricing and, in the
case of generic prescription drug products, the requirements for designating the product as interchangeable with a branded
prescription drug product. In addition, other federal, provincial, territorial and local laws and regulations govern the approval,
packaging, labeling, sale, marketing, advertising, handling, storage, distribution, dispensing and disposal of prescription drugs.
Sales of prescription drugs, pharmacy reimbursement and drug prices may be affected by changes to the health care industry,
including legislative or other changes that impact patient eligibility, drug product eligibility, the allowable cost of a prescription
drug product, the mark-up permitted on a prescription drug product, the amount of professional or dispensing fees paid by thirdparty payers or the provision or receipt of manufacturer allowances by pharmacy and pharmacy suppliers.
The majority of prescription drug sales are reimbursed or paid by third-party payers, such as governments, insurers or employers.
These third-party payers have pursued and continue to pursue measures to manage the costs of their drug plans. Each provincial
jurisdiction has implemented legislative and/or other measures directed towards managing pharmacy service costs and controlling
increasing drug costs incurred by public drug plans and private payers which impact pharmacy reimbursement levels and the
availability of manufacturer allowances. Legislative measures to control drug costs include lowering of generic drug pricing,
restricting or prohibiting the provision of manufacturer allowances and placing limitations on private label prescription drug
products.
Ongoing changes impacting pharmacy reimbursement programs, prescription drug pricing and manufacturer allowance funding,
legislative or otherwise, are expected to continue to put downward pressure on prescription drug sales and payments relating
thereto. These changes may have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business, sales and profitability.
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Private Surgery Regulation
There are currently initiatives intended to compel enforcement by the Medicare Services Commission of the Government of British
Columbia (the “Commission”) of certain provisions of the Medicare Protection Act (British Columbia) (“Act”) against private
clinics operating in the province with the use of doctors enrolled in the Medicare Services Plan of British Columbia (the “Plan”).
The Plan insures medically-necessary services for residents of British Columbia. Under the Act, enrolled doctors are prohibited
from providing services in both the public and private systems. The Company’s subsidiary, False Creek Health Care Centre LP
(“False Creek”), operates a private clinic in British Columbia that uses the services of independent doctors that are enrolled under
the Plan. A constitutional challenge has been brought by another private clinic in British Columbia challenging certain provisions
of the Act, including the prohibition of enrolled doctors from providing services in both the public and private systems. The goal
of the challenge is to have the Commission remove the restrictions that prevent British Columbia residents from obtaining timely,
and potentially life-saving, medical care. The matter was set to go to trial in September 2014, but had been adjourned until March
2, 2015 to allow for settlement discussions and subsequently adjourned on February 24, 2015. Management understands that the
federal government has sought intervener status and that the trial has been adjourned to September 2016. If the constitutional
challenge is successful then this should dispose of initiatives intended to compel enforcement by the Commission of certain
provisions of the Act. If the constitutional challenge is unsuccessful and the Commission commences initiatives aimed at
enforcement of the Act, it could have a direct impact on a portion of the surgical procedures at False Creek. Enforcement measures
of the Commission could include compelling of facility audits, injunctions and/or penalties or other compensatory measures. There
can be no assurance at this time as to the outcome of the constitutional challenge or any initiatives of the Commission as against
enrolled doctors or private clinics in British Columbia. The Company is actively monitoring the developments in the constitutional
challenge, as well as conducting its own investigations into the applicability of, and measures under, the Act.

Reliance on Contracts with Key Customers
Revenues attributable to the Company’s businesses are dependent upon certain significant customers. There can be no assurance
that the Company’s contracts with its key customers will be renewed or that the Company’s services will continue to be utilized
by those key customers. There could be material adverse effects on the businesses of the Company if a key customer does not
renew its contracts with the Company, or elects to terminate its contracts with the Company in favour of another service provider.
Further, there is no assurance that any new agreement or renewal entered into by the Company with its customers will have terms
similar to those contained in current arrangements, and the failure to obtain those terms could have an adverse effect on the
Company’s businesses.

Uncertainty of Liquidity and Capital Requirements
The future capital requirements of the Company will depend on many factors, including the number and size of acquisitions
consummated, rate of growth of its client base, the costs of expanding into new markets, the growth of the market for healthcare
services and the costs of administration. In order to meet such capital requirements, the Company may consider additional public
or private financing (including the incurrence of debt and the issuance of additional common shares) to fund all or a part of a
particular venture, which could entail dilution of current investors' interest in the Company. There can be no assurance that additional
funding will be available or, if available, that it will be available on acceptable terms. If adequate funds are not available, the
Company may have to reduce substantially or otherwise eliminate certain expenditures. There can be no assurance that the Company
will be able to raise additional capital if its capital resources are depleted or exhausted. Further, due to regulatory impediments
and lack of investor appetite, the ability of the Company to issue additional common shares or other securities exchangeable for
or convertible into common shares to finance acquisitions may be restricted.
The borrowings of the Company under the Revolving Facility and the Notes are secured by its lenders by a general security
agreement over substantially all of the assets of the Company. Should the Company not meet its covenants or obligations under
these borrowing agreements when due, there is the risk that its lenders may realize on its security and liquidate the assets of the
Company.
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Litigation & Insurance Cover
From time to time the Company is involved in litigation, investigations or proceedings related to claims arising out of its operations
in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the Company, these claims and lawsuits in the aggregate, when settled are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
The Company makes acquisitions of various sizes that may involve consideration to vendors in the form of cash and securities of
the Company, as well as adjustment or contingent consideration that may take the form of price protection, earn-outs or performance
rewards over a period of time. Contestation by vendors at a future date of actual, or applicable, entitlements under the negotiated
agreements can happen, and may result in liabilities and contingencies to the Company or strained working relationships with
vendors turned key employees in connection with the acquisition. The Company also completes divestitures of various sizes and
the Company may from time-to-time be a party to a dispute relating to the transaction, which could result in liabilities and/or
contingencies to the Company.
In recent years, liability insurance coverage has become considerably more expensive and the availability of coverage has been
reduced in certain cases. There is no assurance that the existing coverage will continue to be sufficient or that, in the future, policies
will be available at adequate levels of insurance or at acceptable costs. Centric Health maintains professional malpractice liability
insurance, directors' and officers' and general liability insurance in amounts it believes are sufficient to cover potential claims
arising out of its operations. Some claims, however, could exceed the scope of its coverage or the coverage of particular claims
could be denied.
Due to the nature of the services provided by the Company, general liability and error and omissions claims may be asserted against
the Company with respect to disability management services and malpractice claims may be asserted against Centric Health, or
any of its subsidiaries, with respect to healthcare services. Although the Company carries insurance in amounts that management
believes to be standard in Canada for the operation of healthcare facilities, there can be no assurance that the Company will have
coverage of sufficient scope to satisfy any particular liability claim. The Company believes that it will be able to obtain adequate
insurance coverage in the future at acceptable costs, but there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so or that it will not
incur significant liabilities in excess of policy limits. Any such claims that exceed the scope of coverage or applicable policy limits,
or an inability to obtain adequate coverage, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Competition
The markets for Centric Health's products and services are intensely competitive, subject to rapid change and significantly affected
by market activities of other industry participants. Other than relationships the Company has built up with insurance companies,
healthcare providers, retirement homes and Long Term Care homes and patients, there is little to prevent the entrance of those
wishing to provide similar services to those provided by Centric Health and its subsidiaries. Competitors with greater capital and/
or experience may enter the market or compete for referrals from insurance companies and the services of available healthcare
professionals. There can be no assurance that Centric Health will be able to compete effectively for these referrals and healthcare
professionals, that additional competitors will not enter the market, that such competition will not make it more difficult or expensive
to provide disability management services or that competitive pressures in the provision of these services in a geographic region
will not otherwise adversely affect Centric Health.

Acquisitions and Integration
The Company has and continues to expect to make acquisitions of various sizes that fit particular niches within Centric Health's
overall corporate strategy. There is no assurance that it will be able to acquire businesses on satisfactory terms or at all. These
acquisitions will involve the commitment of capital and other resources, and these acquisitions could have a major financial impact
in the year of acquisition and beyond. The speed and effectiveness with which Centric Health integrates these acquired companies
into its existing businesses may have a significant short-term impact on Centric Health's ability to achieve its growth and profitability
targets.
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The successful integration and management of acquired businesses involves numerous risks that could adversely affect Centric
Health's growth and profitability, including that:
(a) Management may not be able to manage successfully the acquired operations and the integration may place significant
demands on management, thereby diverting its attention from existing operations;
(b) Operational, financial and management systems may be incompatible with or inadequate to integrate into Centric Health's
systems and management may not be able to utilize acquired systems effectively;
(c) Acquisitions may require substantial financial resources that could otherwise be used in the development of other aspects
of the business;
(d) Acquisitions may result in liabilities and contingencies which could be significant to the Company's operations; and
(e) Personnel from Centric Health's acquisitions and its existing businesses may not be integrated as efficiently or at the rate
foreseen.
The acquisition of healthcare-related companies or assets involves a long cost recovery cycle. The sales processes for the products
that these companies offer are often subject to lengthy customer approval processes. Failures by the Company in achieving signed
contracts after the investment of significant time and effort in the sales process could have an adverse impact on the Company`s
operating results.

Referrals
In the Surgical and Medical Centres segment, the patient referrals are dependent on the surgical practitioners affiliated therewith.
Surgical practitioners have no contractual obligation or economic incentive to refer patients to the surgical centres. Should surgical
practitioners discontinue referring patients or performing operations at the surgical centres, the business, financial condition and
results of operations of Centric Health could be adversely affected.

Shortage of Healthcare Professionals
As the Company expands its operations, it may encounter difficulty in securing the necessary professional medical and support
staff to support its expanding operations. There is currently a shortage of certain medical specialty physicians and nurses in Canada
and this may affect Centric Health's ability to hire physicians, nurses and other healthcare practitioners in adequate numbers to
support its growth plans, which may adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operations.

Credit Risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk to the extent that its clients become unable to meet their payment obligations. The Company's
exposure to concentrations of credit risk is limited. Accounts receivable are from the workers compensation boards, government
agencies, employers, insurance companies and patients.

Information Technology Systems
Centric Health's businesses depend, in part, on the continued and uninterrupted performance of its information technology systems.
Sustained system failures or interruptions could disrupt the Company's ability to operate effectively, which in turn could adversely
affect its business, results of operations and financial condition.
The Company's computer systems may be vulnerable to damage from a variety of sources, including physical or electronic breakins, computer viruses and similar disruptive problems. Despite precautions taken, unanticipated problems affecting the information
technology systems could cause interruptions for which Centric Health's insurance policies may not provide adequate compensation.

Exposure to Epidemic or Pandemic Outbreak
As Centric Health's businesses are focused on healthcare, its employees and/or facilities could be affected by an epidemic or
pandemic outbreak, either within a facility or within the communities in which Centric operates. The Company has developed
protocols and procedures should they be required to deal with any potential Ebola outbreaks impacting its facilities. Despite
appropriate steps being taken to mitigate such risks, there can be no assurance that existing policies and procedures will ensure
that Centric Health's operations would not be adversely affected.
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Confidentiality of Personal and Health Information
Centric Health and its subsidiaries' employees have access, in the course of their duties, to personal information of clients of the
Company and specifically their medical histories. There can be no assurance that the Company's existing policies, procedures and
systems will be sufficient to address the privacy concerns of existing and future clients. If a client's privacy is violated, or if Centric
Health is found to have violated any law or regulation, it could be liable for damages or for criminal fines or penalties.
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Key Personnel
The Company believes that its future success will depend significantly upon its ability to attract, motivate and retain highly skilled
executive management. In addition, the success of each business unit depends on employing or contracting, as the case may be,
qualified healthcare professionals. Currently, there is a shortage of such qualified personnel in Canada. The Company will compete
with other potential employers for employees and it may not be successful in keeping the services of the executives and other
employees, including healthcare professionals that it requires. The loss of highly skilled executives and healthcare professionals
or the inability to recruit these individuals in markets that the Company operates in could adversely affect the Company's ability
to operate its business efficiently and profitably.

Accounting, Tax and Legal Rules and Laws
Any changes to accounting and/or tax standards and pronouncements introduced by authorized bodies may impact on the Company's
financial performance. Additionally, changes to any of the federal and provincial laws, regulations or policies in jurisdictions where
the Company operates could materially affect the Company's operations and its financial performance. The Company may also
incur significant costs in order to comply with any proposed changes. The Company's failure to comply with laws, regulations or
policies may expose the Company to legal or regulatory proceedings which could have a material impact on the Company's financial
performance.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Company may face risks if there are deficiencies in its internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and
procedures. Internal controls over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for external reporting purposes. Management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting appropriate to the nature and size of the Company.
The Board, in conjunction with its Audit Committee, is responsible for assessing the progress and sufficiency of internal controls
over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures and will make adjustments as necessary. However, these initiatives
may not be effective at remedying any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures.
Any deficiencies, if uncorrected, could result in the Company's financial statements being inaccurate and in future adjustments or
restatements of its financial statements, which could adversely affect the price of the shares and Centric Health's business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Capital Investment
The timing and amount of capital expenditures by the Company will be dependent upon the Company's ability to utilize credit
facilities, raise new debt, generate cash from operations, meet working capital requirements and sell additional shares in order to
accommodate these items. There can be no assurance that sufficient capital will be available on acceptable terms to the Company
for necessary or desirable capital expenditures or that the amount required will be the same as currently estimated. Lack of these
funds could limit the future growth of the Company and its subsidiaries and their respective cash flows.

Dilution
The Company's by-laws authorize the Company, in certain circumstances, to issue an unlimited number of shares for the
consideration and on those terms and conditions as are established by the Board without the approval of the Shareholders. Any
further issuance of shares may dilute the interests of existing shareholders.

Unpredictability and Volatility of Share Price
Market prices for securities of healthcare services companies may be volatile. Factors such as announcements of new contracts,
innovations, new commercial and medical products, patents, the development of proprietary rights by the Company or others,
regulatory actions, publications, quarterly financial results of the Company or of competitors of the Company, public concerns
over health, future sales of securities by the Company or by current shareholders and other factors could have a significant effect
on the market price and volatility of the common shares of the Company.
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The securities markets have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations from time to time in recent years that often have
been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of particular issuers. These broad fluctuations may adversely
affect the market price of the Company's shares.

Significant Shareholders
There are significant shareholders of the Company that may be long-term holders of the common shares in the Company. As such,
the trading volumes in the common shares of the Company and liquidity may be low. In addition, relatively low liquidity may
adversely affect the price at which the common shares of the Company trade on the listed market.

Ethical Business Conduct
A violation of law, the breach of Company policies or unethical behaviour may impact on the Company's reputation which in turn
could negatively affect the Company's financial performance. The Company has established policies and procedures, including
a Code of Business Conduct, to support a culture with high ethical standards.

Volatile market price for securities of the Company
The market price for securities may be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which
are beyond the Company’s control, including the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

actual or anticipated fluctuations in the Company’s quarterly results of operations;
changes in estimates of future results of operations by the Company or securities research analysts;
changes in the economic performance or market valuations of other companies that investors deem comparable to
the Company;
addition or departure of the Company’s executive officers and other key personnel;
release or other transfer restrictions on outstanding securities;
sales or perceived sales of additional securities;
significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments by
or involving the Company or its competitors; and,
news reports relating to trends, concerns or competitive developments, regulatory changes and other related issues
in the Company’s industry or target markets.

Financial markets have recently experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have particularly affected the market
prices of securities of companies and that have, in many cases, been unrelated to the operating performance, underlying asset
values or prospects of such companies. Accordingly, the market price of the securities of the Company may decline even if the
Company’s operating results, underlying asset values or prospects have not changed.
Additionally, these factors, as well as other related factors, may cause decreases in asset values that are deemed to be other than
temporary, which may result in impairment losses. As well, certain institutional investors may base their investment decisions on
consideration of the Company’s environmental, governance and social practices and performance against such institutions’
respective investment guidelines and criteria, and failure to meet such criteria may result in a limited or no investment in the
Company’s securities by those institutions, which could adversely affect the trading price of the Company’s securities. There can
be no assurance that continuing fluctuations in price and volume will not occur. If such increased levels of volatility continue, the
Company’s operations and the trading price of the Company’s securities may be adversely affected.
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The Company needs to comply with financial reporting and other requirements as a public company
The Company is subject to reporting and other obligations under applicable Canadian securities laws and TSX rules, including
National Instrument 52-109. These reporting and other obligations place significant demands on the Company’s management,
administrative, operational and accounting resources. Moreover, any failure to maintain effective internal controls could cause the
Company to fail to meet its reporting obligations or result in material misstatements in its consolidated financial statements. If the
Company cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, its reputation and operating results could be materially harmed,
which could also cause investors to lose confidence in the Company’s reported financial information, which could result in a lower
trading price of its securities.
Management does not expect that Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting
will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and implemented, can provide only reasonable,
not absolute, assurance that its objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Due to the inherent limitations in all
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues within a company are detected.
The inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur
because of simple errors or mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented by individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two
or more people or by management override of the controls. Due to the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Future sales of the Company’s securities by directors and executive officers
Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, directors and executive officers and their affiliates may sell some or all of
their securities in the Company in the future. No prediction can be made as to the effect, if any, such future sales will have on the
market price of the Company’s securities prevailing from time to time. However, the future sale of a substantial number of securities
by the Company’s directors and executive officers and their controlled entities, or the perception that such sales could occur, could
adversely affect prevailing market prices for the Company’s securities.
Directors and officers may have conflicts of interest
Certain of the directors and officers of the Company may also serve as directors and/or officers of other companies and consequently
there exists the possibility for such directors and officers to be in a position of conflict. Any decision made by any of such directors
and officers involving the Company are being made in accordance with their duties and obligations to deal fairly and in good faith
with a view to the best interests of the Company.
Dilution and future sales of securities may occur
The Company’s articles permit the issuance of an unlimited number of Common Shares and an unlimited number of preferred
shares, and shareholders will have no pre-emptive rights in connection with such further issuances. The directors of the Company
have the discretion to determine the price and the terms of issue of further issuances of Common Shares and preferred shares.
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Reconciliation of Non-IFRS Measures
This MD&A includes certain measures which have not been prepared in accordance with IFRS such as EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA
and Adjusted EBITDA per share. These non-IFRS measures are not recognized under IFRS and, accordingly, users are cautioned
that these measures should not be construed as alternatives to net income determined in accordance with IFRS. The non-IFRS
measures presented are unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin and Adjusted EBITDA per share
The Company defines EBITDA as earnings before depreciation and amortization, interest expense, amortization of lease incentives,
and income tax expense (recovery). Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA before transaction and restructuring costs, change
in fair value of contingent consideration liability, impairments, change in fair value of derivative financial instruments, gain on
disposal of property and equipment and stock based compensation expense. Adjusted EBITDA Margin is defined as Adjusted
EBITDA divided by revenue. Adjusted EBITDA per share is defined as Adjusted EBITDA divided by the weighted outstanding
shares on both a basic and diluted basis. The Company believes that Adjusted EBITDA is a meaningful financial metric as it
measures cash generated from operations which the Company can use to fund working capital requirements, service interest and
principal debt repayments and fund future growth initiatives. The Company's agreements with senior lenders are structured with
certain financial performance covenants which includes Adjusted EBITDA as a key component of the covenant calculations.
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not recognized measures under IFRS. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are as follows for the
three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015:
For the three month
periods ended June 30,

(thousands of Canadian Dollars)

Net loss from continuing operations
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Amortization of lease incentives
Income tax expense (recovery)
EBITDA from continuing operations
Transaction and restructuring costs
Change in fair value of contingent consideration liability
Share-based compensation expense
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
Adjusted EBITDA from discontinued operations
Adjusted EBITDA
Weighted average number of shares - basic and diluted
Adjusted EBITDA per share from continuing operationsbasic and diluted
Adjusted EBITDA per share - basic and diluted
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For the six month periods
ended June 30,

2016
$
(11,447)
3,099
3,652
(105)
814
(3,987)
3,699
4,223
167
(20)
—
4,082
—
4,082

2015
$
(7,887)
2,732
8,953
(16)
(701)
3,081
2,350
(374)
270
(2,576)
—
2,751
6,871
9,622

2016
$
(20,432)
6,138
11,863
(164)
148
(2,447)
4,478
4,510
428
(66)
(1)
6,902
—
6,902

2015
$
(21,479)
5,342
17,309
(65)
(922)
185
4,488
51
712
(1,567)
—
3,869
13,097
16,966

162,741

159,937

162,357

157,535

$0.03
$0.03

$0.02
$0.06

$0.04
$0.04

$0.02
$0.11
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Adjusted EBITDA by segment has been determined as follows for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015:
For the three month period ended June 30, 2016
Specialty
Pharmacy
$

Surgical and
Medical
Centres
$

Corporate
$

Total
$

Net income (loss) from continuing operations before interest
expense and income taxes
Depreciation and amortization

1,923
2,287

865
685

(9,769)
127

(6,981)
3,099

Amortization of lease incentives
EBITDA from continuing operations
Transaction and restructuring costs
Change in fair value of contingent consideration liability
Share-based compensation expense
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments

(1)
4,209
78
—
—
—
—

(63)
1,487
13
—
—
—
—

(41)
(9,683)
3,608
4,223
167
—
(20)

(105)
(3,987)
3,699
4,223
167
0
(20)

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations

4,287

1,500

(1,705)

4,082

For the six month period ended June 30, 2016
Specialty
Pharmacy
$

Surgical and
Medical
Centres
$

Corporate
$

Total
$

Net income (loss) from continuing operations before interest
expense and income taxes
Depreciation and amortization

2,967
4,521

1,111
1,364

(12,499)
253

(8,421)
6,138

Amortization of lease incentives
EBITDA from continuing operations
Transaction and restructuring costs
Change in fair value of contingent consideration liability
Share-based compensation expense
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments

(9)
7,479
91
—
—
(1)
—

(101)
2,374
306
—
—
—
—

(54)
(12,300)
4,081
4,510
428
—
(66)

(164)
(2,447)
4,478
4,510
428
(1)
(66)

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations

7,569

2,680

(3,347)

6,902
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For three month period ended June 30, 2015 (restated)
Specialty
Pharmacy
$

Surgical and
Medical
Centres
$

Corporate
$

Total
$

2,545
1,541
(5)
4,081

(238)
1,018
(2)
778

(1,942)
173
(9)
(1,778)

365
2,732
(16)
3,081

Transaction and restructuring costs
Change in fair value of contingent consideration liability

459
—

95
—

1,796
(374)

2,350
(374)

Share-based compensation expense
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments

—
—

—
—

270
(2,576)

270
(2,576)

4,540

873

(2,662)

2,751

Net income (loss) from continuing operations before interest
expense and income taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives
EBITDA from continuing operations

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations

For the six month period ended June 30, 2015 (restated)
Specialty
Pharmacy
$

Surgical and
Medical
Centres
$

Corporate
$

Total
$

Net income (loss) from continuing operations before interest
expense and income taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives
EBITDA from continuing operations

3,219
2,994
(9)
6,204

(324)
2,006
(38)
1,644

(7,987)
342
(18)
(7,663)

(5,092)
5,342
(65)
185

Transaction and restructuring costs
Change in fair value of contingent consideration liability

1,854
—

9
—

2,625
51

4,488
51

Share-based compensation expense
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments

—
—

—
—

712
(1,567)

712
(1,567)

8,058

1,653

(5,842)

3,869

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
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Proposed Transactions
There are no significant proposed transactions which have not been disclosed.

Subsequent Events
Subsequent to June 30, 2016, the Company entered into 10-year Business Development, Technology and Supply Agreements with
Guardian and IDA Pharmacies under which the Company has agreed to an exclusive supply arrangement over the term of the
agreement and the two companies have committed to explore partnerships that can result in the creation or extension of patient
support initiatives that deliver better quality and more efficient patient care by leveraging technology. Under the terms of the
Agreements, Guardian and IDA Pharmacies have committed to invest up to $17.0 million to support innovative programs and
solutions, as well as the organic and acquisitive growth strategies of Centric Health.

Additional Information
Additional information about the Company, including the Company's Annual Information Form, can be found on the SEDAR
website at www.sedar.com.
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Centric Health Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash (notes 2 and 15)
Trade and other receivables (note 15)
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Non-current assets
Restricted cash (notes 2 and 15)
Property and equipment (note 4)
Goodwill and intangible assets (note 4)
Deferred income tax assets (note 5)
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade payables and other amounts (note 6)
Current portion of borrowings (note 7)
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
Current portion of contingent consideration (note 3)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (note 7)
Preferred partnership units (note 8)
Finance lease liabilities
Contingent consideration (note 3)
Deferred income tax liabilities (note 5)
Deferred lease incentives
Derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings (note 7)
Total liabilities
Equity
Share capital (note 9)
Warrants
Contributed surplus
Equity portion of convertible borrowings
Deficit
Equity attributable to shareholders of Centric Health Corporation
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

June 30, 2016
$

December 31, 2015
$

4,276
3,000
15,113
6,120
1,158
29,667

14,881
233,896
15,844
6,204
910
271,735

—
10,996
85,367
550
126,580

3,000
11,692
89,435
1,719
377,581

20,083
9,965
156
11,038
41,242

35,169
54,481
309
3,936
93,895

78,398
—
451
3,465
6,748
740
—
131,044

214,818
37,592
345
6,178
8,838
904
66
362,636

108,864
2,527
23,319
2,905
(142,563)
(4,948)
484
(4,464)

107,900
3,787
16,662
7,119
(121,186)
14,282
663
14,945

Total liabilities and equity
126,580
377,581
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
Approved by the Board
"Dr. Jack Shevel"
Dr. Jack Shevel, Director

"Yazdi Bharucha"
Yazdi Bharucha, Director
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Centric Health Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)
For the three month periods
ended June 30,
2015
(Restated 2016
note 15)
$
$

For the six month periods
ended June 30,
2015
(Restated 2016
note 15)
$
$

Revenue
Cost of healthcare services and supplies
General and administrative expenses (note 12)
Transaction, restructuring and other costs (note 3)
Loss from operations
Interest expense (note 13)
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (note 7)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration liability (note 3)
Loss before income taxes
Income tax expense (recovery) (note 5)
Net loss from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations (note 15)
Net loss

43,264
26,926
15,417
3,699
(2,778)
3,652
(20)
4,223
(10,633)
814
(11,447)
—
(11,447)

41,545
25,565
16,215
2,350
(2,585)
8,953
(2,576)
(374)
(8,588)
(701)
(7,887)
833
(7,054)

84,239
53,096
30,642
4,478
(3,977)
11,863
(66)
4,510
(20,284)
148
(20,432)
(1,037)
(21,469)

78,624
48,825
31,919
4,488
(6,608)
17,309
(1,567)
51
(22,401)
(922)
(21,479)
2,089
(19,390)

Other comprehensive income:
Amortization of deferred gain on interest rate swaps
Comprehensive loss

—
(11,447)

(3)
(7,051)

—
(21,469)

(8)
(19,382)

Net loss attributable to:
Shareholders of Centric Health Corporation
Non-controlling interests

(11,424)
(23)

(6,959)
(95)

(21,377)
(92)

(19,295)
(95)

Comprehensive loss attributable to:
Shareholders of Centric Health Corporation
Non-controlling interests

(11,424)
(23)

(6,956)
(95)

(21,377)
(92)

(19,287)
(95)

($0.07)
$0.00
($0.07)

($0.05)
$0.01
$(0.04)

($0.13)
($0.01)
($0.13)

($0.14)
$0.01
($0.12)

162,741

159,937

162,357

157,535

Basic and diluted earnings per common share attributable to
shareholders of Centric Health Corporation:
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations
From earnings for the period
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (in
thousands) (note 9)
Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
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Centric Health Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except number of shares)

Balance at December 31, 2014
Issuance of shares
Options and RSUs vested and
issued

AOCI2
$

Deficit
$

Equity
attributable
to the
shareholders
of Centric
Health
Corporation
$

7,119

8

(167,269)

(35,187)

1,173

(34,014)

—

—

—

2,065

—

2,065

Number of
shares1

Share
capital
$

Warrants
$

Contributed
surplus
$

Equity
portion of
convertible
borrowings
$

153,388,986

104,821

3,694

16,440

5,699,178

2,065

—

—

Noncontrolling
interest
$

Total
$

961,672

374

—

(374)

—

—

—

—

—

—

Settlement of interest rate swap

—

—

—

—

—

(8)

—

(8)

—

(8)

Deferred compensation expense

300,000

289

47

334

—

—

—

670

—

670

Payment of non-controlling
interests

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(128)

(128)

Net loss

—

—

—

—

—

—

(19,309)

(19,309)

(81)

(19,390)

Balance at June 30, 2015

160,349,836

107,549

3,741

16,400

7,119

—

(186,578)

(51,769)

964

(50,805)

Balance at December 31, 2015

160,882,600

107,900

3,787

16,662

7,119

—

(121,186)

14,282

663

14,945

494,342

423

—

(423)

—

—

—

—

—

—

1,075,000

253

6

—

—

—

—

259

—

259

Options and RSUs vested and
issued
Shares released from escrow or
treasury and warrants issued
related to contingent
consideration
Extension of convertible debt (note
7)

—

—

(1,313)

6,991

(4,214)

—

—

1,464

—

1,464

300,000

288

47

89

—

—

—

424

—

424

Payment of non-controlling
interests

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(87)

(87)

Net loss for the year

—

—

—

—

—

—

(21,377)

(21,377)

(92)

(21,469)

162,751,942

108,864

2,527

23,319

2,905

—

(142,563)

(4,948)

484

(4,464)

Deferred compensation expense

Balance at June 30, 2016
1

Excludes 201,025 of contingent shares held in escrow and restricted shares as at June 30, 2016 (note 9).
2
AOCI – Accumulated other comprehensive income. Balances have been transfered to net income.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
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Centric Health Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

For the three month periods ended
June 30,

For the six month periods ended
June 30,

2016

2015

2016

2015

$

$

$

$

(11,447)

(7,054)

(21,469)

(19,390)

Interest expense (note 13)

3,652

8,953

11,863

17,309

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (note 7)

(1,567)

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Net loss for the period
Adjustments for:

(20)

(2,576)

(66)

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, equipment and intangible assets

—

—

(1)

369

Depreciation of property and equipment (note 4)

686

1,371

1,370

2,650

Amortization of finite-life intangible assets (note 4)

2,413

5,255

4,768

10,492

Amortization of lease incentives and lease inducements

(105)

(49)

(164)

33

Income taxes paid

(470)

(780)

(824)

(1,485)

Income tax recovery

814

1,302

148

1,017

Share-based compensation expense (note 12)

167

270

428

712

Transaction costs settled in shares

—

—

—

500

4,223

(374)

4,510

51

—

—

1,037

—

Net change in non-cash working capital items (note 17)

(4,819)

6,379

(13,714)

4,015

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities

(4,906)

12,697

(12,114)

14,706

Proceeds from restricted cash used for acquisitions (note 2)

—

—

—

26,000

Proceeds from restricted cash used for debt repayment (note 2)

—

—

224,149

—

—

—

12

—

(590)

—

(590)

(26,000)

Change in the fair value of contingent consideration liability (note 3)
Gain on sale of business (note 15)

Investing activities

Proceeds on disposal of property, equipment and intangible assets
Acquisition of businesses (note 3)
Purchase of intangible assets (note 4)

(38)

(312)

(101)

(312)

Purchase of property and equipment (note 4)

(266)

(1,716)

(523)

(2,868)

Cash transferred as part of acquisitions (note 3)

21

—

21

1,606

(873)

(2,028)

222,968

(1,574)

Interest paid

(2,972)

(12,570)

(8,835)

(12,859)

Repayment of borrowings (note 7)

(5,746)

(9,842)

(208,407)

(9,842)

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Financing activities

Restricted cash released from restrictions following the repurchase of
Notes (note 2)

—

—

10,023

—

Withdrawal (repayment) of Revolving Facility

8,000

7,000

(14,000)

12,000

Repayment of finance leases

(76)

(55)

(153)

(90)

Payments to non-controlling interests

(20)

(109)

(87)

(128)

Cash used in financing activities

(814)

(15,576)

(221,459)

(10,919)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(6,593)

(4,907)

(10,605)

2,213

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

10,869

7,357

14,881

237

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

4,276

2,450

4,276

2,450

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements. Refer to note 15 for cash flows
related to discontinued operations.

5

Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

1.

Significant Accounting Policies

Centric Health Corporation, together with its subsidiaries (collectively “Centric Health” or “the Company”), is
incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act. The Company is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange
and is incorporated and domiciled in Canada. The Company’s principal business is providing healthcare services to
its patients and customers in Canada. The address of the Company’s registered office is 20 Eglinton Avenue West,
Suite 2100, Toronto, Ontario.
Basis of preparation
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34
Interim Financial Reporting as outlined by International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and its interpretations
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). They do not include all the information required
for a complete set of IFRS financial statements. However, selected explanatory notes are included to explain events
and transactions that are significant to an understanding of the changes in the Company's financial position and
performance since the last annual consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015.
The accounting policies applied in these unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements are consistent
with the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015. The Company has consistently applied the same accounting policies throughout all
periods presented, unless otherwise noted, as if these policies had always been in effect.
These unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors (the
"Board") on August 9, 2016.
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

2.

Capital Management, Liquidity Risk and Financing

The Company manages its capital structure based on the funds available to the Company in order to support the
continuation and expansion of its operations. The Board establishes quantitative return on capital criteria, which it
reviews with management on a regular basis. The Company defines capital to include share capital, warrants and the
stock option component of its shareholders' equity as well as its Revolving Facility, second lien senior secured notes
(the "Notes"), convertible debts, preferred partnership units and contingent consideration. In addition to the cash flow
generated by operations, the Company relies on debt and equity financing from both arm's length and related parties
to execute on its stated business strategy. In order to maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Company may seek
financing through the issuance of securities such as convertible debt, or by replacing existing debt with debt on terms
more consistent with the Company's needs.
On July 27, 2015, the Company announced that its Board had initiated a process to consider and evaluate strategic
alternatives available to the Company following unsolicited interest in certain businesses of the Company. The Company
has previously disclosed that it was exploring opportunities to maximize shareholder value which included additional
divestitures of existing businesses. In light of these circumstances, the Company established a Special Committee
composed of directors who are independent of management to oversee the strategic review process.
On December 31, 2015, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of the businesses within its Physiotherapy,
Rehabilitation and Medical Assessments segment (the "Sale Transaction") (note 15) to Audax Private Equity for cash
consideration on closing of approximately $245,000 (subject to working capital adjustments, refer to note 15), of which
$3,000 will be held in escrow up to June 30, 2017 to support certain representations and warranties the Company made
as part of the sale agreement. In addition to the cash received, the purchase consideration also included up to $5,000
in contingent consideration. The Company has used a substantial portion of the net proceeds received on closing of
approximately $234,000 to repay debt in accordance with the terms of the various debt agreements currently in place.
On February 22, 2016, the Company paid $169,072 to the holders of the second lien senior secured notes (the "Notes")
with a par value of $164,264, which included $4,808 of accrued interest, leaving Notes with a principal balance of
$25,894 remaining. In conjunction with the payment of the Notes, the Company amended the trust indenture. The
amendments provide the Company, subject to certain limitations, with additional flexibility to, among other things,
repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire for value or retire its outstanding securities, make interest and principal
payments on subordinated debt, incur additional indebtedness, alter the size of the Revolving Facility, make distributions
to shareholders, and make additional acquisitions and dispositions.
On March 4, 2016, using $30,000 of the net proceeds from the Sale Transaction and a promissory note, Lifemark Health
Limited Partnership redeemed all of its issued and outstanding remaining preferred partnership units, all of which were
held by Alaris Income Growth Fund Partnership (“Alaris”), for the full repurchase price of approximately $38,397.
Immediately upon redemption of the preferred partnership units and payment of $30,000 in cash, Alaris loaned the
Company approximately $8,397 as a promissory note on substantially the same economic terms as applied to the
equivalent value of preferred partnership units, which the Company repaid in full on March 23, 2016.
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

2.

Capital Management, Liquidity Risk and Financing - continued

On March 23, 2016, the Company amended its 5.5% April 2016 Convertible Noteholders ("April 2016 CDs") on the
following terms: (i) the maturity date would be extended from April 30, 2016 to July 31, 2017, (ii) the interest rate
payable under the April 2016 CDs would be increased from 5.5% to 6.5% from and including May 1, 2016 to July 31,
2017 and (iii) the conversion price would be decreased from $0.9229 per share to $0.52 per share from and including
May 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 (collectively, the "Amended 2016 Note Terms"). The holders of $9,080 principal amount
agreed to accept the Amended 2016 Note Terms. On May 2, 2016, the Company paid $121 cash consent fee (representing
1.333% of the principal amount) to the holders of the April CDs who accepted the Amended 2016 Note Terms, and
the noteholders holding the remaining April 2016 CDs for $5,920 principal outstanding were repaid at par plus accrued
and unpaid interest of $163.
On March 22, 2016, the lenders of the Revolving Facility amended the credit agreement, which was scheduled to
mature on June 9, 2016, for a two year extension. The extended Revolving Facility will now mature on March 22,
2018 and will bear interest on a sliding scale from prime plus 1.25% to prime plus 2.75% for principal borrowed and
a range of 0.56% to 0.94% for standby fees for amounts not borrowed. The Revolving Facility's capacity will remain
at $35,000, with an additional $15,000 accordion available subject to lender approval.
The renewed Revolving Facility, along with any remaining proceeds from the Sale Transaction, should provide the
Company with sufficient funding and flexibility to invest in growing the ongoing businesses and manage its cash
requirements through 2016, within the restraints of the amended facility's covenants. The Company intends to repay
the convertible debentures that mature in December 2016 with any of the remaining proceeds or the combination of
remaining proceeds and the Revolving Facility, as permitted under the terms of the credit agreement. The Company
is also reviewing strategic alternatives for the debt obligations that mature in 2017.
Following the closing of the Sale Transaction, the Company initiated a corporate restructuring program to right size
the Company and optimize the corporate infrastructure for the remaining businesses. The program included, but was
not limited to, a new corporate organizational structure and various cost containment initiatives.
With the completion of the Sale Transaction, the business restructuring program, the subsequent repayment of a
significant portion of the Notes, preferred partnership units and April 2016 CDs and the renewed Revolving Facility,
the Company anticipates it will be in compliance with the new covenants in its Revolving Facility during 2016 and
continue to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its obligations as they come due through existing cash flows, future
organic growth, ongoing operational improvements and cost containment initiatives. There can be no assurance that
the Company will be successful in achieving the results targeted in its operating plan for each of the quarters in 2016.
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

2.

Capital Management, Liquidity Risk and Financing - continued

The continuity of restricted cash is as follows:
$
Restricted cash balance on December 31, 2014
Purchase of Pharmacare
Restricted cash applied to capital expenditures and transaction costs
Return of temporary repayment from Revolving Facility
Repayment of second lien senior secured notes
Interest earned
Remaining cash applied to Revolving Facility
Divestiture of the Sale Transaction, net of estimated transaction costs
Restricted cash balance as of December 31, 2015

36,302
(26,000)
(10,059)
10,000
(10,000)
71
(309)
236,891
236,896

Repayment of second lien senior secured notes and accrued interest
Repayment of Alaris principal
Repayment of borrowings on the Revolving Facility
Interest earned
Remaining proceeds released from restrictions following the repurchase of Notes
Restricted cash balance as of June 30, 2016

(169,072)
(38,397)
(16,680)
276
(10,023)
3,000
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

3.

Business Combinations

Pharmacy West Ltd. ("Pharmacy West")
During the second quarter of 2016, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Pharmacy West. Total consideration
included cash of $590 and contingent consideration of $138, which represented fair value at the date of acquisition.
The contingent consideration is based on achieving certain EBITDA targets up to December 31, 2017.
The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been determined on a provisional basis. The Company
will continue to review the fair values during the measurement period subject to the completion of an independent
valuation. As at June 30, 2016, the Company recognized Goodwill of $599 related to the Pharmacy West acquisition.
Pharmacare
On March 2, 2015, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Pharmacare, a leading Alberta-based specialty
pharmacy business. Pharmacare provides medication dispensing services and clinical care programs to long-term care
and retirement community residents across western Canada through an integrated distribution model.
The total purchase price consideration included a combination of $26,000 in cash, 4,347,826 common shares of the
Company with a fair value of $1,565 at closing based on the listed share price of the Company of $0.36 per share and
contingent consideration of $9,881, representing its acquisition date fair value, payable over a three year period based
on the achievement of certain targets. The contingent consideration consists of $6,832 of performance cash that has
been discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate, $2,974 of performance shares that are based on the probability of
meeting certain EBITDA targets, up to a maximum of 8,260,869 performance shares, and $75 in warrants that are
based on the probability of out performing certain EBITDA targets, up to a maximum of 4,000,000 warrants. The
warrants have an exercise price of $0.35 per share and will have a two-year term from the date on which they vest and
become exercisable.
Purchase price
Cash consideration
Common shares
Contingent consideration
Total

$
26,000
1,565
9,881
37,446
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

3.

Business Combinations - continued

During the fourth quarter of 2015 and the first quarter of 2016, the Company recorded certain adjustments to the
purchase price allocation to identify and value intangible assets and associated deferred taxes included as part of the
acquisition. The Company has finalized the purchase price allocation, allocated as follows:

Fair value of net assets acquired

December 31, 2015

2016 Adjustments

Final

Other current assets
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Intangibles assets
Less: Deferred tax liabilities
Less: Other liabilities assumed

3,248
2,522
14,737
24,310
(5,227)

—
—
(60)
60
—

3,248
2,522
14,677
24,370
(5,227)

(2,144)
37,446

—
—

(2,144)
37,446

Total

In the third quarter of 2015, the Company received $832 as part of the working capital settlement. The amount has
been included as an adjustment to the purchase price allocation. The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were determined on a provisional basis at the time of acquisition. The goodwill is attributable to the expected
synergies with existing businesses and the profitability of the acquired business.
Transaction, restructuring and other costs
Transaction and restructuring costs, including legal, consulting and due diligence fees directly related to business
combinations or business restructuring, as well as severance costs and start-up costs for new initiatives, are expensed
as incurred. Start-up costs for new initiatives are costs incurred by the Company for a new business initiative prior to
this initiative generating any revenue. Restructuring costs include costs associated with corporate reorganization and
other staffing reductions. Included in transaction costs for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 are
advisory fees of $nil and $nil (2015 - $225 and $450) related to transaction-related services provided by Global
Healthcare Investments and Solutions, Inc. (“GHIS”), a related party. The service agreement expired in June 2015 and
was not renewed.
Transaction, restructuring and other costs for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 consist
of the following:
For the three month periods
ended June 30,

Transaction costs
Start-up costs
Restructuring and other costs
Total

2016
$
80
—
3,619
3,699

2015
(Restated note 15)
$
800
42
1,508
2,350

For the six month periods
ended June 30,
2016
$
115
—
4,363
4,478

2015
(Restated note 19)
$
2,263
61
2,164
4,488
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

3.

Business Combinations - continued

At June 30, 2016, the Company had accrued liabilities from continuing operations related to severance of $778
(December 31, 2015 - $1,443) included in trade and other payables consisting of the following:
Severance
$
Balance at December 31, 2015
Additions
Payments
Reversals
Balance at June 30, 2016

1,443
486
(938)
(213)
778

Contingent consideration
The fair value of contingent consideration is an estimate. The valuation model considers possible scenarios of forecast
EBITDA, the amount to be paid under each scenario and the probability of each scenario. The fair value is dependent
on certain inputs such as forecast EBITDA, risk adjusted discount rates and the Company's share price.
The continuity of the contingent consideration liability to be settled in cash, common shares and warrants is as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2015
Change in fair value during the period
Contingent consideration settled in shares
Contingent consideration settled in warrants
Balance at March 31, 2016
Fair value at date of acquisition
Change in fair value during the period
Balance at June 30, 2016
Less: current portion
Non-current portion at Jun 30, 2016

SmartShape Classic Care Pharmacare
$
$
$
1,986
2,263
5,532
121
(61)
210
(253)
—
—
(6)
—
—
1,848
2,202
5,742
—
75
1,923
1,923
—

—
214
2,416
2,416
—

—
3,889
9,631
6,230
3,401

Other
$
333
17
—
—
350
138
45
533
469
64

Total
$
10,114
287
(253)
(6)
10,142
138
4,223
14,503
11,038
3,465

In connection with the November 2011 purchase of Classic Care Pharmacy Corporation ("Classic Care"), a settlement
for a dispute was reached with one of the vendors. As part of the settlement, the Company agreed to contingent payment
terms, which may be payable depending on the Company's share price after the Company releases results for the second
quarter of 2016 and can be settled in cash or shares, as specified in the terms of the settlement. As a result, the Company
recorded a contingent consideration liability with a fair value as of June 30, 2016 of $2,416 (December 31, 2015 $2,263). The expected range of the potential undiscounted amounts payable remaining is between $nil and $3,100.
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

3.

Business Combinations - continued

In connection with the December 2013 acquisition of SmartShape, the Company recorded a contingent consideration
liability in the amount of $987, which represented its fair value at the date of acquisition. The valuation method was
based on the the share price of the Company's common shares on December 2, 2013 ($0.36 per share), a risk adjusted
discount rate of 9.5% and the Black Scholes model for the valuation of warrants. The valuation of the liability is
dependent on performance targets based on the number of procedures performed over a two year earn-out period. On
December 2, 2015, the earn-out period was completed. On February 9, 2016, the Company released 1,075,000 escrowed
shares to the vendors. The remaining liability is based on an amount that may be payable depending on the Company's
share price as specified in the purchase agreement, discounted based on a risk adjusted discount rate of 9.5%. The
expected range of the potential undiscounted amounts payable remaining is between $nil and $2,200.
On March 2, 2015, the Company recorded a contingent consideration liability as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of Pharmacare in the amount of $9,881, which represented its fair value at the date of acquisition. The
valuation method was based on the share price of the Company's common shares on March 2, 2015 ($0.36 per share)
and a risk adjusted discount rate of 9.5%. The valuation of the liability is dependent on actual EBITDA being greater
than or equal to annualized EBITDA targets of $6,750, $7,500 and $8,250 for each of the three earn-out years, with a
catch-up provision at the end of the three years. At June 30, 2016, the Company estimated the probability of meeting
these targets to be 100%. The fair value of the contingent consideration has increased to $9,631 as of June 30, 2016.
The expected range of the potential undiscounted amounts payable remaining is between $nil and $10,100.
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Centric Health Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for share amounts)

4.

Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Property and Equipment

Goodwill
$

Intangible
Assets
$

Goodwill and
Intangible
Assets
$

Property and
Equipment
$

Year ended December 31, 2015
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2014
Acquisition of business
Additions
Disposals
Disposals from sale of business
Purchase price allocation adjustment
Balance at December 31, 2015

199,095
41,321
—
—
(154,902)
(22,437)
63,077

136,948
500
452
(382)
(82,069)
24,270
79,719

336,043
41,821
452
(382)
(236,971)
1,833
142,796

36,794
3,285
5,423
(1,913)
(20,768)
—
22,821

Accumulated amortization and impairment losses
Balance at December 31, 2014
Amortization charge
Impairment
Disposals
Disposals from sale of business
Balance at December 31, 2015

(55,481)
—
(1,678)
—
50,000
(7,159)

(84,061)
(22,386)
(322)
—
60,567
(46,202)

(139,542)
(22,386)
(2,000)
—
110,567
(53,361)

(17,773)
(5,369)
—
990
11,023
(11,129)

Period ended June 30, 2016
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2015

63,077

79,719

142,796

22,821

Additions
Acquisition of business
Disposals
Purchase price allocation adjustment
Balance at June 30, 2016

—
599
—
(60)
63,616

101
—
—
60
79,880

101
599
—
—
143,496

523
162
(14)
—
23,492

Accumulated amortization and impairment losses
Balance at December 31, 2015

(7,159)

(46,202)

(53,361)

(11,129)

—

(4,768)
—
(58,129)

(1,370)
3
(12,496)

89,435
85,367

11,692
10,996

Amortization charge
Disposals
Balance at June 30, 2016

(7,159)

(4,768)
—
(50,970)

Net carrying value
As at December 31, 2015
As at June 30, 2016

55,918
56,457

33,517
28,910

Included in the net carrying value of property and equipment are assets under finance leases of $507 (December 31,
2015 - $523). During the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, additions of property and equipment
acquired through finance leases were $nil (2015 - $119).
The Company has $1,084 of indefinite life intangible assets at June 30, 2016 (December 31, 2015 - $1,084).
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5.

Income Taxes

The total provision for income taxes varies from the amounts that would be computed by applying the statutory income
tax rate of approximately 26.52% (2015 - 26.71%) to income taxes due to permanent differences. Permanent differences
in the six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 arose as a result of impairment charges, contingent consideration,
share-based compensation and other expenses, as these amounts have been recorded for accounting purposes but will
never be realized as a deduction for income tax purposes.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented based on a net basis by legal entity on the consolidated statement
of financial position.
The Company's net deferred tax liability on the statement of financial position is as follows:

Deferred income tax asset
Deferred income tax liability
Net deferred income tax liability

June 30, 2016
$
550
6,748
(6,198)

December 31, 2015
$
1,719
8,838
(7,119)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax loss carryforwards to the extent that the realization of the related tax benefit
through future taxable income is probable. As at June 30, 2016, the Company had losses amounting to $58,039
(December 31, 2015 - $63,198) and net capital losses of $1,500 that can be carried forward against future taxable
income, a portion of which resulted in unrecognized deferred tax assets of $15,465 (December 31, 2015 - $15,843)
based on the projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the losses should be available.

6.

Trade Payables and Other Amounts

Trade payables and other amounts at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are comprised of the following:

Trade payables
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Amounts payable to related parties (note 11)
Restructuring costs (note 3)
Total

June 30, 2016

December 31, 2015

$
10,672
7,667
889
77
778
20,083

$
21,769
10,998
762
27
1,613
35,169

The change in trade payables and accrued liabilities is primarily due to the payment of approximately $6,500 of accrued
transaction costs associated with the Sale Transaction, lower accrued interest as a result of debt repayment, and timing
of working capital payments.
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7.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following:

Second lien senior secured notes
Loan arrangement costs
Revolving Facility
Convertible debt
Unaccreted discount on convertible debt
Promissory notes (note 11)
Unaccreted discount on promissory notes
Total borrowings
Less current portion of borrowings:
Revolving Facility
Convertible debt - directed share program net of unaccreted discount
Total current portion of borrowings
Total non-current portion of borrowings

June 30, 2016
$

December 31, 2015
$

25,894
(290)
17,000
47,388
(5,478)
5,000
(1,151)
88,363

190,158
(1,872)
31,000
53,308
(6,900)
5,000
(1,395)
269,299

—
9,965
9,965
78,398

31,000
23,481
54,481
214,818

Substantially all of the Company's assets are pledged as security for the above borrowings with first security provided
to the lenders of the Revolving Credit Facility, followed by holders of the Notes.
Second lien senior secured notes
On April 18, 2013, the Company completed a $200,000 public offering of the Notes which bear interest at 8.625%
with the principal due on April 18, 2018. There are no principal repayments required for the Notes prior to maturity.
On June 25, 2015, the Company purchased an aggregate of 9,842 Notes for a total principal amount of $9,842 plus
$158 in accrued and unpaid interest, representing a total payment of $10,000 for the Notes. As part of the repurchase,
the Company recorded a loss on repurchase of the Notes for the year ended December 31, 2015 of $166.
On February 22, 2016, the Company purchased an aggregate of 164,264 Notes for a total principal amount of $164,264
plus $4,808 in accrued and unpaid interest, representing a total payment of $169,072 for the Notes.
In conjunction with the payment of the Notes on February 22, 2016, the Company amended the trust indenture, which
removed the restrictions on the Company's ability to take on additional indebtedness based on its financial performance.
The remaining Notes outstanding have a maturity date of April 18, 2018 and, beginning April 18, 2017, the Company
has the option to redeem at par all or any part of the Notes.
The Notes contained certain redemption features which are at the option of the Company commencing on April 18,
2016. These redemption features are considered embedded derivatives that have been valued at $nil (December 31,
2015 - $nil).
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7.

Borrowings - continued

Revolving Facility
On March 22, 2016, the lenders of the Revolving Facility amended the credit agreement, which was scheduled to
mature on June 9, 2016, for a two year extension. The extended Revolving Facility will now mature on March 22,
2018 and will bear interest on a sliding scale from prime plus 1.25% to prime plus 2.75% for principal borrowed and
a range of 0.56% to 0.94% for standby fees for amounts not borrowed. The Revolving Facility's capacity will remain
at $35,000, with an additional $15,000 accordion available subject to lender approval.
Convertible Debt
The Company's convertible debt as at June 30, 2016 consists of the following, of which the interest and principal can
be settled in common shares at the option of the Company:
Principal ($)

Maturity

Interest Rate

Directed share program
Private placement
Public debt
Total convertible debt

Debt instrument

10,808
9,080
27,500
47,388

December 22, 2016
July 31, 2017
October 31, 2017

6.00%
6.50%
6.75%

Jamon promissory note (note 11)
Total promissory notes

5,000
5,000

April 30, 2018

6.00%

On March 22, 2016, the Company made an offer to the 5.5% April 2016 Convertible Noteholders on the following
terms: (i) the maturity date would be extended from April 30, 2016 to July 31, 2017, (ii) the interest rate payable under
the Notes would be increased from 5.5% to 6.5% from and including May 1, 2016 to July 31, 2017 and (iii) the
conversion price would be decreased from $0.9229 per share to $0.52 per share from and including May 1, 2016 to
July 31, 2017 (collectively, the "Amended 2016 Note Terms").
As of April 11, 2016, holders of $9,080 principal amount have agreed to the extension offer. On May 2, 2016, the
Company paid $121 cash consent fee (representing 1.333% of the principal amount) to the Noteholders who agreed
to the Offer, and the Noteholders holding the remaining Convertible Notes for $5,920 principal outstanding were repaid
at par plus accrued and unpaid interest of $163.
The continuity of the unaccreted discount on convertible debt is as follows:

Unaccreted discount on convertible borrowings, beginning of period
Additional discounts from convertible debt
Accretion expense (note 13)
Unaccreted discount on convertible borrowings, end of period

June 30, 2016
$
6,900
1,464
(2,886)
5,478

December 31, 2015
$
12,139
—
(5,239)
6,900
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7.

Borrowings - continued

The derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings is as follows:

Derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings, beginning of period
Change in fair value of derivative liability portion of convertible
borrowings
Derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings, end of period

June 30, 2016
$
66

December 31, 2015
$

(66)
—

(2,280)
66

2,346

The fair value of the derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings is based on a modified Black-Scholes
valuation method. The key valuation assumptions at June 30, 2016 are as follows:
Directed share program

Public debt

Private placement
redemption feature

43.73%
0.87%
28.16%

43.73%
0.86%
32.43%

43.73%
0.89%
30.67%

Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Credit spread

Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments
The change in fair value of derivative financial instruments for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016
and 2015 are as follows:

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Change in fair value of redemption feature
Change in fair value of derivative liability
portion of convertible borrowings
Total

For the three month periods ended
June 30,
2016
2015
$
$
—
—
—
—
(20)
(20)

(2,576)
(2,576)

For the six month periods ended
June 30,
2016
2015
$
$
—
(2)
—
220
(66)
(66)

(1,785)
(1,567)
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8.

Preferred Partnership Units

On June 9, 2011, the Company assumed $65,500 of preferred partnership units issued by LifeMark Health Limited
Partnership to Alaris Income Growth Fund Partnership, whereby the principal balance would grow by 4% annually
from the third anniversary of June 9, 2014. Alaris would also be entitled to annual distributions of $4,115 for the annual
period commencing July 1, 2014 with annual increases of 4% at the end of each year thereafter.
On April 18, 2013, the Company repaid $22,500 of the preferred partnership units and, on June 9, 2013, repaid an
additional $7,500 of the preferred partnership units. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2015 was $37,592.
On March 4, 2016, using $30,000 of the net proceeds from the Sale Transaction and a promissory note, the Company
redeemed all of the remaining preferred partnership units, for the full repurchase price of $38,397. Immediately upon
redemption of the preferred partnership units and payment of $30,000 in cash, Alaris loaned the Company approximately
$8,397 as a promissory note on substantially the same economic terms as applied to the equivalent value of preferred
partnership units.
On March 23, 2016, the Company repaid the full amount of the $8,397 promissory note together with accrued and
unpaid interest of $48 to Alaris.
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9.

Shareholders’ Equity and Earnings per Share

Authorized share capital consists of an unlimited number of common shares. The number of common shares issued
and outstanding is as follows:
For the period ended
($ thousands, except share amounts)
Common shares
Balance, beginning of period
Issuance of shares
Issuance of shares as compensation
Shares released from escrow or issued from treasury for
contingent consideration1
Stock options and restricted share units exercised
Balance, end of period

June 30, 2016
Shares
Stated value
$

December 31, 2015
Shares
Stated value
$

160,882,600
—
300,000

107,900
—
288

153,388,986
5,699,178
300,000

104,821
2,065
363

1,075,000
494,342
162,751,942

253
423
108,864

327,766
1,166,670
160,882,600

79
572
107,900

1

Consists of 1,075,000 common shares released from escrow for the settlement of earnouts for SmartShape for the year ended December 31, 2015; 89,875 common
shares issued from treasury and 237,891 common shares released from escrow for the settlement of earnouts for three physiotherapy clinics for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

The number of common shares considered to be issued for financial reporting purposes is exclusive of restricted shares
issued, shares issued in trust or held in escrow pending the achievement of certain stated milestones or performance
targets.
The total common shares in aggregate at June 30, 2016 are:
Type of common shares
Freely tradeable
Escrowed and restricted
Total

162,751,942
201,025
162,952,967

Common shares related to contingent consideration held in escrow, as discussed in note 3, and restricted shares at
June 30, 2016 are as follows:
Entity
London Scoping Centre
Other
Total

Escrowed and
restricted shares
176,632
24,393
201,025

The continuity of restricted and escrowed shares for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:
Escrowed and restricted shares
Balance at beginning of the period
Released escrowed shares
Released restricted shares
Total

1,576,025
(1,075,000)
(300,000)
201,025
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9.

Shareholders’ Equity and Earnings per Share - continued

Issuance of common shares and warrants
On September 3, 2012, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares to the CEO of the Company. These shares are
held by the Company and released to the CEO as freely tradeable over a four year period (refer to Note 11 for additional
details). These shares are being treated as share based compensation for accounting purposes.
On March 2, 2015, the Company issued 4,347,826 common shares as part of the consideration for the acquisition of
Pharmacare. The shares became freely tradeable upon closing of the acquisition.
On March 18, 2015, the Company issued 1,351,352 common shares as part of a third party advisory services agreement
related to the acquisition of Pharmacare. The shares were issued at the market price at the date immediately prior to
the issuance of $0.37 per share. The shares are being treated as part of transaction costs, as it relates to the closing of
the acquisition.
In June 2015, the Company issued 961,672 common shares to certain members of management and employees related
to restricted share units that have vested.
On August 31, 2015 and September 3, 2015, the Company issued 89,875 and 237,891 common shares, respectively,
related to contingent consideration payments for the settlement of earnouts of three physiotherapy clinics.
In December 2015, the Company issued 204,998 common shares to certain members of management and employees
related to restricted share units that have vested.
On February 9, 2016, the Company released 1,075,000 common shares from escrow related to the settlement of
contingent consideration from the earnouts of the SmartShape acquisition.
In April 2016 and June 2016, the Company issued 291,669 and 202,673 common shares, respectively, to certain members
of management and employees related to restricted share units that have vested.
Issuance of stock options, warrants, deferred stock-based compensation
On March 31, 2015, the Company issued 1,000,000 stock options to management and employees as part of the
acquisition of Pharmacare. All of the options were issued at a strike price of $0.40. The fair value of the options is
$0.20 per option using the Black-Scholes pricing model with the following assumptions:
Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life in years
Share price at date of issue
Forfeiture rate

Nil
64% to 75%
0.59%
3.8
$0.40
10%
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9.

Shareholders’ Equity and Earnings per Share - continued

The Company’s outstanding and exercisable stock options are as follows:
For the period ended

June 30, 2016
Weighted
average exercise
Options
price
5,691,000
$1.43
—
—
(795,500)
$1.66
—
—
4,895,500
$1.40
4,048,000
$1.60

Common share options
Balance, beginning of period
Options granted
Options expired
Options canceled/forfeited
Balance, end of period
Exercisable, end of period

December 31, 2015
Weighted
average exercise
Options
price
6,871,000
$1.45
1,000,000
$0.40
(475,000)
$0.70
(1,705,000)
$1.11
5,691,000
$1.43
4,449,750
$1.70

The weighted-average remaining contractual life and weighted-average exercise price of options outstanding as at
June 30, 2016 are as follows:
Options Outstanding

Range of Exercise Price

Number
Outstanding

$0.39 - $0.58
$0.59 - $1.76
$1.77 - $1.87
$1.88
Balance, end of period

1,170,000
625,000
3,065,500
35,000
4,895,500

Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average
Weighted
Remaining
Average Exercise Contractual Life
Price
(years)
$0.40
$0.93
$1.87
$1.88
$1.40

3.5
0.8
0.3
0.2
1.1

Number
Exercisable

Weighted
Average Exercise
Price

335,000
612,500
3,065,500
35,000
4,048,000

$0.40
$0.94
$1.87
$1.88
$1.60

On March 18, 2015 the Company issued 835,000 restricted share units to management and employees which entitle
the holders to 835,000 common shares of the Company. These restricted share units have been fair-valued based on
the quoted market price on the date of issuance of $0.385 per share and vest over three years.
On January 12, 2016, the Company issued 340,000 restricted share units in two tranches to management and employees
which entitle the holders to 340,000 common shares of the Company. These restricted share units have been fair-valued
based on the quoted market price on the effective date of the grants. The first tranche of 100,000 restricted share units,
which have an effective date of March 3, 2015, were fair-valued based on a quoted market price of $0.375 per share.
The second tranche of 240,000 restricted share units, which have an effective date of August 4, 2015, were fair-valued
based on a quoted market price of $0.265 per share. The restricted share units vest over three years.
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9.

Shareholders’ Equity and Earnings per Share - continued

The Company's outstanding restricted share units are as follows:
For the periods ended
Restricted share units

June 30, 2016
Units
2,642,488
340,000
(494,342)
(566,835)
1,921,311

Balance, beginning of period
Restricted share units granted
Restricted share units released
Restricted share units forfeited
Balance, end of period

December 31, 2015
Units
3,414,835
835,000
(1,166,670)
(440,677)
2,642,488

The weighted-average remaining contractual life of restricted share units outstanding as at June 30, 2016 is 1.50 years.
On February 9, 2016, the Company issued 96,000 warrants related to contingent consideration payments for the
settlement of earnouts of SmartShape. The warrants expire two years from issuance and have a strike price of $0.37
per share.
The Company’s outstanding and exercisable warrants are as follows:
For the periods ended

June 30, 2016
Weighted
average exercise
Warrants
price
7,595,507
$1.01
96,000
$0.37
—
—
(4,050,000)
$0.92
3,641,507
$1.10
1,895,344
$0.59

Share purchase warrants
Balance, beginning of period
Warrants granted
Warrants exercised
Warrants expired
Balance, end of period
Exercisable, end of period

December 31, 2015
Weighted
average exercise
Warrants
price
12,694,427
$1.31
—
—
—
—
(5,098,920)
$1.76
7,595,507
$1.01
5,849,344
$0.82

The weighted-average remaining contractual life and weighted-average exercise price of warrants outstanding as at
June 30, 2016 are as follows:
Warrants Outstanding

Range of Exercise
Price
$0.37 -$ 1.66

Number
Outstanding
3,641,507

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$1.10

Warrants Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life (years)
$0.81

Number
Exercisable
1,895,344

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$0.59
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9.

Shareholders’ Equity and Earnings per Share - continued

Earnings per share
Earnings per share has been calculated on the basis of profit or loss for the year divided by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share, for all periods presented, was calculated
based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and takes into account the effects of unvested
shares, share options, warrants and convertible debt outstanding during the period. Loss per share is not adjusted for
anti-dilutive instruments. The diluted weighted average calculation is based on a time weighting factor that includes
all share options, restricted share units, warrants and conversion features that were issued at prices lower than the
market price of the Company’s common shares at the respective period-ends. These instruments were anti-dilutive
for the periods presented.
The following table illustrates the basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding for the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015:
For the three month periods ended
June 30,
Basic and diluted weighted average shares
outstanding

For the six month periods ended
June 30,

2016

2015

2016

2015

162,740,620

159,936,654

162,357,069

157,534,634
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10.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements

At June 30, 2016, the Company's financial instruments consisted of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
and other receivables, loans receivable, trade and other payables, contingent consideration, bank indebtedness, finance
lease liabilities, borrowings, preferred partnership units, and derivative liabilities.
Fair value hierarchy
Financial instruments carried at fair value have been categorized under three levels of fair value hierarchy as follows:
•

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Fair value is determined based on quoted prices of regularly and recently occurring transactions take place.

•

Level 2: Inputs that are observable for the assets or liabilities either directly or indirectly
This level of the hierarchy includes derivative financial instruments with major Canadian chartered banks.
Level 3: Inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.
This level of the hierarchy includes contingent consideration settled with the Company's shares and derivative
liabilities associated with convertible loans.

Recurring fair value measurements at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Contingent consideration
Derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings
Total

Level 2
$

Level 3
$

—
—
—

14,503
—

14,503

Total
$
14,503
—
14,503

Recurring fair value measurements at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Contingent consideration
Derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings
Total

Level 2
$

Level 3
$

—
—
—

10,114
66
10,180

Total
$
10,114
66
10,180

There were no non-recurring fair value measurements at June 30, 2016. There were no financial instruments classified
as level 1 at June 30, 2016 and 2015. There were no transfers between levels during the three and six month periods
ended June 30, 2016.
Details regarding level 3 fair value measurements for contingent consideration can be found in note 3 and for the
derivative financial instruments related to derivative liability portion of convertible borrowings in note 7.
There were no changes in the valuation techniques used during the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016.
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10.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements - continued

The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortized cost is an approximation
of the fair value for the following financial assets and financial liabilities unless otherwise disclosed below:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Trade and other receivables
Restricted cash (long-term)
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Trade payables and other amounts
Finance lease liability
Second lien senior secured notes
Convertible borrowings
Revolving facility
Related party convertible loan
Preferred partnership units

June 30, 2016
$

December 31, 2015
$

4,276
3,000
15,113
—

14,881
233,896
15,844
3,000

20,083
607
25,604
41,910
17,000
3,849
—

35,169
654
188,286
46,408
31,000
3,605
37,592

The fair value of the second lien senior secured notes at June 30, 2016 is $23,938 (December 31, 2015 - $173,877)
and has a carrying value of $25,604 (December 31, 2015 - $188,286). The fair value of the second lien senior secured
notes was determined by using a discounted cash flow method with a risk-adjusted discount rate (risk free rate of 0.86%
and credit spread of 10.41%).
The fair value of the convertible borrowings, excluding Jamon, a related party, as at June 30, 2016 is $37,777
(December 31, 2015 - $39,288) and has a carrying value of $41,910 (December 31, 2014 - $46,408). The fair value
of the convertible borrowings was determined by using a discounted cash flow method with a risk-adjusted discount
rate (risk free rate of 0.86% to 0.89% and credit spread of 32.43%).
The fair value of the convertible borrowings owed to Jamon, a related party, as at June 30, 2016 is estimated to be its
current redemption value of $5,000 and has a carrying value of $3,849 (December 31, 2015 - $3,605).
Credit Risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk to the extent that its clients become unable to meet their payment obligations.
The Company’s exposure to concentrations of credit risk is limited. Trade receivables include amounts receivable from
the sale of goods and services to the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board and other government agencies, employers,
insurance companies and individual patients.
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10.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements - continued

Trade and other receivables aging (net of provision) was as follows:
June 30, 2016
$
12,921
813
461
918
15,113

0 - 30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

December 31, 2015
$
13,001
1,728
439
676
15,844

Included in trade and other receivables at June 30, 2016 are $5,274 (December 31, 2015 - $5,672) of amounts receivable
from government funding related to product sales and services rendered.
The movement in the provision for impairment against trade and other receivables was as follows:
June 30, 2016
$
118
—
42
—
160

Provision, beginning of period
Amounts transferred to discontinued operations
Provision for receivables impairment
Receivables written off and unused amounts reversed
Provision, end of period

December 31, 2015
$
392
(326)
52
—
118

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are held through Canadian chartered banks. The Company
is not exposed to significant credit risk arising from its financial instruments.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash, another financial asset or equity instruments. The following table
presents the contractual terms to maturity of the financial liabilities owned by the Company as at June 30, 2016:

Trade payables and other amounts
Second lien senior secured notes
Convertible borrowings
Related party convertible loan
Revolving Facility
Finance leases
Interest payments on borrowings
Operating leases

Total
$
20,083
25,894
47,388
5,000
17,000
607
8,010
7,710
131,692

2016
$
20,083
—
10,808
—

2017-2018
$
—
25,894
36,580
5,000

—

17,000

156
2,821
1,204
35,072

451
5,189
3,571
93,685

2019-2020
$
—
—

—
—
—
—
1,763
1,763

Thereafter
$
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
1,172
1,172
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10.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements - continued

The Company incurs interest on its Revolving Facility. Future interest to be paid on the revolving facility cannot be
reasonably determined due to the ongoing fluctuation of the Revolving Facility balance.
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into significant commitments for the purchase of goods and
services, such as the purchase of inventory, most of which are short-term in nature and are settled under normal trade
terms.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk borne by an interest-bearing asset or liability as a result of fluctuations in interest rates.
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through its floating rate Revolving Facility, whose interest rates are based
on the prime rate.
As at June 30, 2016, a 1% change in the variable interest rates on the average balances for the six month period ended
June 30, 2016 would have resulted in an annualized change in interest expense of approximately $240 (December 31,
2015 - $230).
Currency Risk
Virtually all of the Company’s transactions are denominated in Canadian dollars. At June 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015, the Company held no significant financial instruments that were denominated in a currency other than Canadian
currency.
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11.

Related Party Transactions and Balances

In the normal course of operations, the Company has entered into certain related party transactions for consideration
established with the related parties and are approved by the independent non-executive directors of the Company or
are at market terms.
Related party transactions
Related party transactions, in addition to those entered into with Company directors and management, have been entered
into with GHIS and entities controlled by and related to the shareholders of GHIS including Jamon Investments LLC
("Jamon"), who own 59,551,287 shares or approximately 37% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the
Company as at June 30, 2016. This ownership percentage disclosed assumes the issuance of 201,025 escrowed and
restricted shares in the total common shares considered to be outstanding.
On March 21, 2013, GHIS and the Company negotiated an amended consulting agreement which eliminated the
completion fees, removed the consulting fees for the year ended December 31, 2013, and amended the consulting fees
to $75 per month from January 2014 to the completion of the agreement in June 2015. In light of management's
leadership, the Company and GHIS agreed not to renew the advisory agreement at the end of the second quarter of
2015. The representatives of GHIS continue to serve on the Board of Directors and various Committees of the Board
of Directors. In addition, one of the Board members, who is also a director and committee member of some of the
underlying businesses, is assisting management on an interim basis. Included in the results for the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2016 are $30 and $50 (2015 - $nil) of consulting fees related to this arrangement.
For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, the Company incurred $nil and $nil for GHIS advisory fees
(2015 - $225 and $450), which were incurred for six months up to the completion of the agreement in June 2015, $nil
and $nil (2015 - $4 and $39) in GHIS travel related expenses and $75 and $150 (2015 - $75 and $150) in interest on
related party amounts.
Included in trade payables and other amounts at June 30, 2016 are $77 (2015 - $27) due to GHIS, of which $75 (2015
- $25) was related to interest payable to Jamon.
The Company holds a lease agreement for the use of a medical office as part of its Performance operations which is
owned by a director of Performance. The Company's lease expense for this location for the three and six month periods
ended June 30, 2016 was $33 and $65 (2015 - $29 and $59).
In June 2015, the Company entered into a service agreement with a corporation related to a member of senior
management of the Company whereby the Company will fill prescriptions from a customer list that the corporation
has rights to in exchange for a fixed fee per prescription. The fee is up to a maximum of $115 over a twelve month
period. For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, the Company recorded an expense of $nil and $30
(2015 - $12 and $12) related to the fee owed to the corporation. Included in trade payables and other amounts at June 30,
2016 are $nil (2015 - $85) due to the corporation related to these services.
Related party loans
The Company has a promissory note with Jamon for $5,000 that bears interest at 6% with a conversion feature which
is due April 30, 2018. The conversion price for the note is $0.46 per share and the conversion of the note is at the option
of the holder. In addition to the promissory note, Jamon was issued a warrant to purchase 1,000,000 common shares
of the Company at an exercise price of $0.46 per share which expires on April 30, 2018.
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11.

Related Party Transactions and Balances - continued

In the third quarter of 2014, the Company launched a Key Employee Engagement Share Plan ("KEESP") to enable
eligible employees to acquire common shares of the Company. The KEESP allows employees to contribute towards
the purchase of common shares of the Company whereby the Company will match employee contributions by up to
three times with payments capped at a predetermined level. The portion of funds matched by the Company is repayable
by the employees as a promissory note bearing interest at 3% in equal annual installments over five years. A receivable
from employees of $101 (2015 - $136) has been included in trade and other receivables.
On August 14, 2012, the Company entered into a promissory note with the Company's CEO for $500 who is a director
and officer of the Company. This promissory note bears interest at 4% per annum. The promissory note and related
interest will be forgiven by the Company if the CEO is employed on the maturity date of September 3, 2016. If the
CEO resigns prior to September 3, 2016, the promissory note and related interest is repayable on demand. In addition,
a private placement for 782,227 common shares at a price of $0.64 per share and 782,227 warrants with an exercise
price of $0.75 per share was completed with the CEO on August 14, 2012.
On September 3, 2012, the Company issued 1,000,000 restricted shares to the Company's CEO, which vest over a four
year period. These shares are being treated as share-based compensation for accounting purposes, and an expense of
$216 and $216 was recorded in 2015 and six month periods ended June 30, 2016, respectively. As of January 1, 2016,
all of the restricted shares have been released (200,000 shares released on January 1, 2013 and 2014, and 300,000
shares released on January 1, 2015 and 2016).
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12.

General and Administrative Expenses

The components of general and administrative expenses are as follows:
For the three month periods
ended June 30,

Employee costs
Other operating expenses
Corporate office expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Total

13.

2016
$
4,274
6,213
1,664
3,099
167
—
15,417

2015
(Restated - note
15)

$
4,445
6,115
2,653
2,732
270
—
16,215

For the six month periods
ended June 30,
2016
$
8,815
11,969
3,293
6,138
428
(1)
30,642

2015
(Restated - note
15)

$
8,624
11,417
5,824
5,342
712
—
31,919

Interest Expense

Interest expense for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is comprised of the following:
For the three month periods ended
June 30,

For the six month periods ended
June 30,

2016

2015

2016

2015

$

$

$

$

Interest on Term Loan, Revolving Facility and second lien
senior secured notes

891

4,869

3,784

9,525

Amortization of loan arrangement fees

38

297

1,582

614

Interest on promissory note

76

75

152

149

Accretion of promissory note discounts

125

101

244

197

7

10

15

17

Interest on capital leases
Amortization of deferred gain on interest rate swap

—

(3)

—

(8)

Interest on convertible debt

791

828

1,621

1,649

Accretion on convertible debt

1,404

1,275

2,886

2,488

Accretion on preferred partnership units

—

332

805

651

Accretion on Loans Receivable

—

—

—

(22)

Gain on settlement of swaps

—

(14)

—

(14)

Loss on repayment of borrowings

321

166

321

166

3,653

7,936

11,410

15,412

—

1,029

730

2,058

3,653

8,965

12,140

17,470

Interest expense before distributions for preferred
partnership units
Distributions for preferred partnership units
Total interest expense
Interest income
Net interest expense

(1)

(12)

(277)

(161)

3,652

8,953

11,863

17,309
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14.

Segmented Information

As a result of the Company completing the Sale Transaction on December 31, 2015, the Company has amended its
reportable operating segments. The Company will now present two reportable operating segments based on the various
products and services that it offers, rather than three reportable operating segments as was previously presented. The
two reportable operating segments are as follows: (i) Specialty Pharmacy and (ii) Surgical and Medical Centres. The
Company's Performance operations, which were included in the past as part of the Physiotherapy, Rehabilitation and
Assessments segment, is now included as part of the Surgical and Medical Centres segment.
Certain general and administrative corporate costs have been allocated to the reportable segments based on the extent
of corporate management’s involvement in the reportable segment during the year. Those costs that generally represent
the costs associated with a publicly-listed entity, as well as legal fees, advisory fees and acquisition-related services
provided by independent third parties have been reported in the Corporate reportable segment.

Revenue
Depreciation and amortization
Income (loss) before interest expense, income
taxes and discontinued operations
Interest expense

Revenue
Depreciation and amortization
Income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes
and discontinued operations
Interest expense

For the three month period ended June 30, 2016
Surgical and
Specialty
Medical
Pharmacy
Centres
Corporate
Total
$
$
$
$
43,264
31,813
11,451
—
3,099
2,287
685
127
1,923
—

865
—

(9,769)
3,652

(6,981)
3,652

For the six month period ended June 30, 2016
Surgical and
Specialty
Medical
Pharmacy
Centres
Corporate
Total
$
$
$
$
84,239
62,115
22,124
—
6,138
4,521
1,364
253
2,967
—

1,111
—

(12,499)
11,863

(8,421)
11,863

9

Included in the income before interest expense, income taxes and discontinued operations for the Corporate segment is a non-cash loss of $4,510 (2015 - $51)
from the net change in the fair value of the contingent consideration liability for the year, $4,081 (2015 - $2,625) in transaction and restructuring costs and a noncash gain of $66 (2015 - $1,567) from the change in fair value of derivative financial instruments.
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14.

Segmented Information

Revenue
Depreciation and amortization
Income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes
and discontinued operations
Interest expense

Revenue
Depreciation and amortization
Income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes
and discontinued operations
Interest expense

For three month period ended June 30, 2015 (restated)
Surgical and
Specialty
Medical
Pharmacy
Centres
Corporate
Total
$
$
$
$
41,545
31,215
10,330
—
2,732
1,541
1,018
173
2,545
—

(238)
—

(1,942)
8,953

365
8,953

For the six month period ended June 30, 2015 (restated)
Surgical and
Specialty
Medical
Pharmacy
Centres
Corporate
Total
$
$
$
$
78,624
58,223
20,401
—
5,342
2,994
2,006
342
3,219
—

(324)
—

(7,987)
17,309

(5,092)
17,309
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15.

Discontinued Operations

The results from discontinued operations below have been segmented to align with the operating segments of the
Company. The composition of discontinued operations segments is as follows:
•
•
•

Physiotherapy, Rehabilitation and Assessments discontinued operations includes the Company’s
physiotherapy and rehabilitation operations, which are composed of its network of physiotherapy clinics, CAR,
Active and the Company’s Medical Assessments operations.
Specialty Pharmacy discontinued operations includes the Methadone Pharmacies.
Surgical and Medical Centres discontinued operations includes the Sarnia surgical centre, Sleep Clinic and
Windsor Endoscopy Center.

2015 Sale Transaction
On December 31, 2015, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of the businesses within its Physiotherapy,
Rehabilitation and Medical Assessments segment for cash consideration on closing of approximately $245,000, of
which $3,000 will be held in escrow up to June 30, 2017 to support certain representations and warranties the Company
made as part of the sale agreement. In addition to the cash received, the purchase consideration also includes a working
capital adjustment of $337 and up to $5,000 in contingent consideration. The working capital settlement resulted in
an adjustment of $1,037 recorded in the three month period ended March 31, 2016 based on the preliminary estimate
at closing of $700 receivable to the final settlement amount of $337 payable.
The contingent consideration will be achieved if certain proposed new Ontario pension legislation arrangements are
not put in place until after June 1, 2017, the Company will be entitled to $3,200 of this additional consideration. In
addition, the Company could also earn some or all of its entitlement if the businesses sold achieve certain revenue
performance targets in 2016.
The details of the sale of the subsidiary are as follows:
$
Consideration received:
Cash
Estimated working capital settlement
Fair value of contingent consideration
Total consideration

245,672
700
—
246,372

Transaction costs related to the divestiture
Carrying amount of net assets sold
Gain on sale before tax

(7,714)
(154,290)
84,368

Income tax expense on gain
Gain on sale as of December 31, 2015

(4,028)
80,340

Working capital settlement adjustment
Gain on sale as of June 30, 2016

(1,037)
79,303
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15.

Discontinued Operations - continued

Results from Discontinued Operations
The results from discontinued operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as
follows:
For the three month period ended June 30, 2016
Physiotherapy,
Rehabilitation
and Assessments
$

Specialty
Pharmacy
$

Surgical and
Medical Centres
$

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

Total
$
—
—
—

Income tax expense

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

Loss from discontinued operations

—

—

—

—

Revenues
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Loss before income taxes from discontinued
operations

Revenues
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Final working capital settlement
Loss before income taxes from discontinued
operations
Income tax expense (recovery)
Net loss from discontinued operations

For the six month period ended June 30, 2016
Physiotherapy,
Specialty
Surgical and
Rehabilitation
Pharmacy
Medical
Centres
and Assessments
$
$
$
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
1,037
—
—

Total
$
—
—
—
1,037

(1,037)

—

—

(1,037)

—
(1,037)

—
—

—
—

—
(1,037)
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15.

Discontinued Operations - continued

Revenues
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization
(Loss) income before income taxes from
discontinued operations
Income tax expense (recovery)
Net income (loss) from discontinued
operations

For three month period ended June 30, 2015 (restated)
Physiotherapy,
Specialty
Surgical and
Rehabilitation
Pharmacy
Medical Centres
Total
and Assessments
$
$
$
$
49,503
49,436
—
67
42,773
42,653
37
83
3,894
3,894
—
—
2,889
2,034

(37)
(33)

(16)
2

2,836
2,003

855

(4)

(18)

833

For the six month period ended June 30, 2015 (restated)
Physiotherapy,
Specialty
Surgical and
Rehabilitation
Pharmacy
Medical Centres
Total
and Assessments
$
$
$
$
Revenues

95,607

—

368

95,975

Expenses

83,265

58

824

84,147

Depreciation and amortization

7,748

—

52

7,800

Income (loss) before income taxes from
discontinued operations

4,594

(58)

(508)

4,028

Income tax expense (recovery)

1,948

2

(11)

1,939

Net income (loss) from discontinued
operations

2,646

(60)

(497)

2,089

Included in net losses from discontinued operations is income attributable to non-controlling interests of $24 and
$10 for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2015, respectively.
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15.

Discontinued Operations - continued

The cash flows from discontinued operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are
as follows:

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows
Financing cash flows
Total Cash Flows

For the three month periods ended
June 30,
2016
2015
$
$
—
6,455
—
(1,281)
—
—
—
5,174

For the six month periods ended
June 30,
2016
2015
$
$
—
13,926
—
(1,884)
—
(19)
—
12,023
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16.

Contingencies

From time to time the Company is involved in litigation, investigations or proceedings related to claims arising out of
its operations in the ordinary course of business, and the completion of acquisitions or divestitures. The Company
believes that these claims and lawsuits in the aggregate, when settled are not expected to have a material impact on
the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
Currently, the Company is party to a dispute with the purchaser of the Company’s former retail and home medical
equipment segment in September 2014. The plaintiff has made certain allegations and is seeking damages exceeding
$20,000. The Company anticipates that the matter will be resolved at an amount lower than the total claim, and has
accrued a provision of $3,000, which includes the estimated legal fees that will be incurred.

17.

Supplementary Disclosure to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

The net change in non-cash working capital comprises the following:

Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Trade payables and other amounts
Total

For the three month periods
ended June 30,
2016
2015
$
$
(623)
(1,272)
534
(187)
346
372
(5,076)
7,466
(4,819)
6,379

For the six month periods ended
June 30,
2016
2015
$
$
(41)
(1,385)
183
96
(243)
(216)
(13,613)
5,520
(13,714)
4,015

The change in trade payables and accrued liabilities is primarily due to the payment of approximately $6,500 of accrued
transaction costs associated with the Sale Transaction, lower accrued interest as a result of debt repayment, and timing
of working capital payments.

18.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent to June 30, 2016, the Company entered into 10-year Business Development, Technology and Supply
Agreements with Guardian and IDA Pharmacies, under which the Company has agreed to an exclusive supply
arrangement over the term of the agreement and the two companies have committed to explore partnerships that can
result in the creation or extension of patient support initiatives that deliver better quality and more efficient patient
care by leveraging technology. Under the terms of the Agreements, Guardian and IDA Pharmacies have committed to
invest up to $17,000 to support innovative programs and solutions, as well as the organic and acquisitive growth
strategies of Centric Health.
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